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ABOUT THE COVER:

The Mississippi River flows through New Orieans at a
rate of 300 hilion gallons per day, providing
commerce, recreation, spectacular views and one of
life’s necessities--drinking water--for the citizens of the
City. Maintaining a delicate balance between nature
and human needs, the Sewerage and Water Board of
New Orleans uses this great natural resource to help
provide services to its customers. Raw river water is
carefully treated and transformed into quality drinking
water which is distributed 1o homes and businesses.
Wastewater is treated 1o highest standards before
being returned 1o the river. The levees, which prevent
the Mississippi from overflowing its banks, also trap
every drop of rainwater which falls in the city, requiring
the Board to remove runoff via a massive and complex
network of canals and drainage pumping stations. As
the 21st Century approaches, the Sewerage and Water
Board remains committed to meet the challenge of
"Tackling America’'s Toughest Water Problems.”

FPhoto by David Harvey
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MISSION STATEMENT

To be one of the best antd most respected suppliers of sewer, water, and drainage
services in the south-central United States by providing quality, reliable, and cost
effective services to our Customers while maintaining fair and ethical treatment of our

well-trained and highly motivated employees.

OUR VALUES

Open, honest communication
Trust and respect for each other
Offering and encouraging education and opportunity to employees

Fostering enthusiasm among employees through example of the
managers/supervisors

Providing direction and planning and encouraging
interdepartmental team work

Assuring reliability in providing services 1o customers

KEY RESULT AREAS

Customer Satisfaction
Cost Effectiveness
Employee Satisfaction

Capabilities Improvement through Training
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The Sewerage and Water Board conducts educational programs for students of alf ages and
participates in community support programs. tach year the Board offers an exhibil at
Audubon Zoo's Earthicst,

Construction of a new trickling filter s underway at the West Bank Sewage Treatment Plant
in Algiers. The §7.5 milhion project s parl of a major improvement program for the plant, de-
signed 1o merease efhciency and treatment capacity.
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MARC M. MORIAL, President
HENRY A. THLLON, JR., Presidernt Pro Tem

Sewerage & Water Board OF NEW ORLEANS

625 ST. JOSEPH STREET
HARQLD O GORMAN NEW ORLEANS, LA, 70165 . 6852180

Eaecutive [Dipector .-"\pl'i] 15, 1909

TO: THE HONORABLE PRESIDENT AND MEMBERS OF THE SEWERAGE AND WATER
BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

We are pleased to present the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Sewerage and Water
Board of New Orieans for the year ended December 31, 1998, Responsibility for both the accuracy of the
data and the completeness and faimess of the presentation, including all disclosures, rest solely with the
Sewerage and Water Board. It is our belief that the data, as presented, is accurate in all material aspects
and is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position, results of operations, and
cash flows of the Board’s Enterprise and Pension Trast Funds.  All disclosures necessary to enable the
reader to gain an understanding of the Sewerage and Water Board's financial activities have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four (4) major sections: Introductory,
Financial, Statistical and Supplemental. The Introductiory Scction includes the transmittal letter and listings
of the officers, members and committees of the Board of Directors. This section also includes the Board's
orgamzational chart and a reproduction of the 1997 Centificate of Achicvement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting awarded by the Government Finance Ofhicers Association,  The Financial Section inctudes the
independent auditors’ report, along with the general purpose finanoal statements and the accompanying
notes,  The combined and individual fund statesments for the Unterprise and Pension Trust Funds are
included. Required supplementary information is also included. The Statistical Section includes selected
financial and demographic mformation, generally in a multi-yecar presentation.  Additional information
rclative to the Sewcrage and Water Board’s operations 15 included in a Supplemental Section.

The Sewerage and Water Board meets the cnitena for classification as an “other stand - alone
gaverniment” as desceribed in Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14,

The reporting entity includes the Enterprise Fund and the Pension Trust Fund.  The Enterprise
Fund 1s composed of three (3) independent systems: Water, Sewerage and Drainage.

sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans 15 a political subdivision created in 1899 by [ouisiana
State Statutes. The Board 1s charged with construction, operation, and maintenance of Water, Sewcerage
and Dratnage Systems for the ity of New Orleans. By agreement, approximately 2,550 acres of
adjourmng Jefterson Parish is served by the Board’s drainage facilities for which Jefferson Parish pays its
pro rata share of expenses. In addition, the Bouard provides sewerage services to Jefferson Parish businesses
the majority of which are restaurants located in the West End neighborhood near the Lakefront.
Additonally, the Board provides water and sewerage services to the Plaguemines Panish Indusirial Park.
The Sewerage and Water Board was established as a “special board” operating independently of city
povermment.  ‘The Mayor of New Orleans serves as the President of the Board of Directors which is
composed of three (3) representatives of the City Council, two (2) representatives of the Board of
Lrquidation, City Debt and seven (7) appointees as designated by the State statutes,
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FCONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The Board's service arca includes the Civil Panish of Orleans in the state of Louisiana and covers
364 square miles. Based on the 1990 census, the population of Orlcans Parish was 498,938, Major
industries include tourism, o1l and gas, transportation, health and other services, such as legal, education

and entertainment,

Job growth in the New Orleans arca has been sluggish due mainly to major energy sector declines,
according to the January 1999 issue of the Metropolitan Report: Economic Indicators for the New Orleans
Arca (UNQO Report), published by the Division of Business and Economic Research, University of New
Orleans. According to the UNO Repor, within the past several months, nearly ali the major oil & gas
companies have announced cutbacks and/or consolidations that will affect employment levels in New
hrlcans. Amoco, Chevron, Exxon/Mobit, Shell and Texaco have all announced reductions in their New
Orleans workforce. As a result, direct mining employment in the New Orleans area i1s expected to plummet
over the next two years. Employment losses will total (1,570 jobs) as 10.2% of the mining job in the
metropolitan arca are eliminated. New Orleans’ energy sector has been the most volatile of any local
industry over the last thirty years. The resurgent energy sector provided much of the impetus behind New

Orleans economic gains enjoyed over the past few years.

I.ocal tourism sector indicators fell in the third quarter from record Ievels in the previous quarter.
The UNQO Report indicated that Phase 11 of the Convenuon Center, Jazzland, and Harrah's casino can only
stimulate demand. Negotiations to revive Harrah’s casino in downtown have been successful and

construction on the structure has restarted, according to the UNO Report,

In total, from the third quarier of 1998 to the third quarter of 2000, the New Orleans area will add
10,988 jobs. Continuing what has been a long-term local trend four sectors-the catchall, “other services'™
state and local government; eating and dnnking establishments; and health services will lead all other in
cmployment growth, accounting for two thirds of all the employment gains over the next two years.
Taxablc sales fell in the thard quarter of 1998 while motor vehicles sales increased.

Home bulding indicators were strong through the third quarter. Continued low mortgage rates in
the next two years should support the demand for new housing. Construction employment fell in the third
quarter and 1s expected to dechine again in the next four quarters. A rebound is anticipated in the following

year,

The New Orleans metropolitan area had a net outmigration of about 5,600 over the past four
guarters and continuation of this pattern i1s expected, according to the UNO Report.




MAJOR INITIATIVES

For the year: The Board budgeted approximately 384 million for capital improvements in 1998,
This included $5.9 million for water and sewer matns in the City of New Orleans, Department of Public

Works paving projects,

Water - A Contract for the design of the Filter Improvements at the Carrollton Water Plant
was awarded. These improvements will keep the plant comphant with proposed
drinking water standards. Construction costs are estimated to be $11 million

Sewerage - Work continues on the $180 million ety -wide sewer rehabilitation program with
the award of two contracts in the Lakeview area for manhole rehabilitation.
Engineering contracts were awarded for the design of the Central Business [hstrict
/French Quarter sewer rehabiliation work, the Uptown sewer system evaluation
survey and the Gentilly Sewer System Evaluation Study (SSES). The Dwyer Road

Force Main restoration was completed in 1998.

Drainage - The Drainage Pumping Station #1 construction contract was re-awarded by the
U. S. Army Corps of Engineers. Many of the Southeast Louisiana Projects, 75%
funded by the Comps of Engineers, are in the final stages of design and are
expected to bid in 1999. These projects are: The Napoleon Avenue Canal
Improvements, the Napoleon/Claibome Avenuc Intersection, the Dwyer Road
Pumping Station, the Dwyer Road Pumping Statton Discharge Tubes and the

Hollygrove Pumping Station and Canal System.

In September of 1998, the Board received approval for the third in an anticipated senes of grants
from the Fnvironmental Protection Agency (EPA) for planning, design, construction, and rehabilitation of
the sanitary sewer system. This grant award was $8 million for a five (5) year period, and must be matched
by approximately $6.5 million in Board funds. The primary goal of the effort is to protect public health by
reducing and eliminating (1) structural failures of gravity scwer mains and sewer force mains (2)
mechanical failures of sewage pumping station and (3) high rates of infiltration and inflow,

The five (5) year capital program budget of $621,910,000 was approved by the Sewerage and
Water Board in December 1998, During the next five years an additional $223,356,000 in drainage
improvements is expected to be financed by the U.S. Corps of Engineers for Southeast Louisiana flood
control projects. The first major project scheduled for completion is the expansion of Drainage Pumping
Station #1, was let in the summer of 1997 and relet in 1998,

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Management of the Sewerage and Water Board is responsible for designing and maintaining an
internal control structure suflicient to safeguard the Board’s assets against loss, theft or misuse and to
ensure the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute assurance that these goals are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the
cost of internal controls should not exceed the benefits expected to be derived and (2) the valuation of costs

and bencfits require the exercise of judgement by management.

-3




The Enterprise Fund's Water and Sewerage Systems are financed by user fees. The unique
characteristics of the services provided by the Drainage System of New Orieans require the use of
Enterprise Fund accounting in order to obtain a meaningful measure of the cost of providing the services
and capital maintenance. Revenues from the three (3) mill, six (6) mill and nine (93 null ad valorem taxes,
which are restricted exclusively for drainage services, finance the Drainage System.  These ad valorem
taxes are the operating revenues of the drainage system.

Budgetary Control:  ‘The Sewerage and Water Board maintains an internal budgetary control
through the preparation and monitoring of an annual operating and capital budget for the Water, Sewerage,
and Dyrainage funds. Monthly budget reports are provided to department level managers 1o assist them n

their fiscal responsibilities.

General Operations: There was a modest increase in operating revenues from 1997 to 1998 (3.2%
increasc) primarily due to an increase in sewer and water services and collection of property taxes. The
waler and sewer rate structure is unchanged from that of 1997. Operating expenses increased by 4.7%
primarily duc to an increase in the provision for self-insurance claims. A large case was settled in 1998 and

a provision of approximately $10 million was made for the judgement.

Peasion Trust Fund Operations: The contributions to the Pension Trust Funds are based on
annual actuarial valuations. The Sewerage and Water Board continues to fund the paydown of the total

unfunded liability over a remaining penod of six (6) years,

Debt Administration: The Board of Liquidation. City Debt has responsibility for the
adiministration of the Board's debl. Drainage debt services paymems are supported by ad valorem tax
collections, while user fees are used to provide debt services for the Water and Sewerage System bonds.
The Sewerage and Water Board's bonds outstanding as of December 31, 1998 totaled $%0,725,000.

Cash Management: Cash temporarily idle in the Enterprise Fund during the year was invested in
commercial bank certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, and U. S, Treasury Bills.  Effective
January, 1996, investments were recorded at market value. Investment income on these 1dle funds was

$5.877,86().

Risk Management: The Sewerage and Water Board uses both insured and retained risk programs
to manage exposures 1o loss, The Board administers self-insured programs for property and automobile
liability exposures. Also, retained risk programs for general liability and workers' compensation losses and
claims arc admunistered by the Board., Improved claims management and administration have facilitated
more timely and betier decision making on a case-by-case basis.  The updating of risk management
procedures and information systemns is ongoing with the objective of improving loss control effonts and risk

assessment capabilities.

New Governmental Accounting Standards Board Pronouncements (GASB) and Technical
Bullentin 99-1: In fiscal year 1998 the Sewerage and Water Board implemented GASB Statement Number
27, Accounting for Pensions by State and local Governimental Employers. Pnor year financtal information
has been restated to conforin to GASB 27, The GASH issued Technical Bulletin 99-1 (TB 99-1),
Disclosures about Year 2000 Issues - an amendment to Technical Bulletin 98-1. The provisions of TB 99-
I are eftective immediately and terminate for financial statements for pertods ending afler December 31,
1999, The Board has provided the year 2000 disclosures in its financial statements as required

supplementary imformation.
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Other Information: State Statutes and covenants governing outstanding bond 1ssucs require an
annual audit of the Board's financial records by independent certified pubhic accountants. The accounting
firms of KPMG LLP and Bruno and Tervalon were selected by the Board to perform this audit. The
independent auditors’ report on the general-purpose financial statements is mcluded in the Financial

Scehion of the report.

The Government Finance Officers Assoctation of the Umited States and Canada (OFOA) awarded a
Centificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Sewerage and Water Board of New
Orleans for its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997, The
Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award-recognizing conformance with the highest

standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an casily
readable and efhiciently organized comprehensive annual financial report whose contents conform 1o
program standards. Such CAFR must satisly both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable

legzal requirements.

A Certificate of Achicvement is valid for a period of one (1) vear only. The Sewecrage and Water
Board of New Orleans has received a Certificate of Achievement for the last sixteen (16) consecutive vears.
We beheve our current report continues to conform to the Cerification of Achievement Program

requirements and we are submitting it to GFOA,

Acknowledgments: The Comprehensive Annual! Financial Report was prepared by the
dedicated staft of the Board's Management Services Administration, particularly the Accounting and
Printing Departments. Also, special thanks to the Budget Department for its assistance in this effort.

We also wish to thank the members of the Board for their interest and support in our cfforts to
achieve greater fiscal efficiency and accountability.

Harold J. Gorman
Executive Treclor ¢

-thel H. Williams
Utility Financial Adnmstrator
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1998 Revenues
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Certiticate of

Achievement

tor Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Sewerage and Water Board
of New Orleans,

_ouisiana

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended

December 31, 1997

A Certticate of Achieverment for Excellence in Finarcial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Assoctation of the United States and Canada to
qovernment units and public employee retiremernt
systemns whose comprehensive annual financial
reports {CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards i government accounting
and financial reporting.
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Presidernt
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Executive Director

u L |

-9




. — — e — — — — — — — w— w— T T

OFEICERS
of the

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD
OF NEW ORI.EANS

—_—— —rr

December 31, 1998
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COMMITTEES
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OF
NEW ORLEANS

HENRY A. DILLON, JR. - Chairperson
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COMMITTEE ON SEWERAGE AND WATER

e e

EDDIE 1.. SAPIR - Chairperson
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HENRY A. DILLON, JR. - Chairperson
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COMMITTEE ON SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OPERATIONS
HENJAMIN L. EDWARDS - Chairperson
EDDIE 1. SAPIR JAMES M. SINGL.ETON

FIAUMBING CONFERENCE COMMITITEL
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STAFFORD R, TUREAUD, SR, - Chairperson
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MARY K. ZERVIGON JAMES ). ARNOILD
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THE SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

DIVISION HEADS OF DEPUTY DIRECTOR

MARCIA A. ST. MARTIN
DEPUTY DIRECTOR

-

Ann M. Boulware

ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS DIVISION
Gordon C. Austm

MANAGEMENT SERVICES DIVISION
Martin F. Comer, Jr.

PLANNING AND BUDGLET DIVISION

Lawrence J. Fedenco, Jr.

SUFPPORT SERVICES DIVISION
Paul D, Mumme, Sr.
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Warren J. Lawrence

OPERATIONS DIVISION
John R. Huerkamp

PLUMBING DIVISION
James J. Arnold
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Carol W. Warren
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The Sewerage and Water Board takes pnde in #s financial reporting, budgeting and accounting systems

and procedures. The financial depantments are responsible for accurate reports to management,
timely payments to contractors. like those working on the project below, and a syslem by which
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Sure: 3500 Ong Shell Square & Tervalon

fievey Orieans, LA 70134935404

Independent Auditors’ Report

Members of the Board
Scewerage and Water Board of New Orleans:

We have audited the gencral puipose Hinancial siatements of the Sewerage and Water Board of
New Orleans (the Board), as of and for the yvears ended December 31, 1998 and 1997, as histed 1n
the table of contents. These general purpose financial statements arc the responsibility of the
Board's management.  Qur responsibility is to cxpress an opinion on these general purpose

financial statements bascd on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Ciavernment Auditing Standards. 1ssucd by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statecments are free of matenal misstatcment. An audit includes examiming, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also
includes assessing the accounting prninciples used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We belicve that our audifs

provide a reasonable basis for our opimon.

In our opinion. the gencral purpose financial statements referred to above present fairly, 1n all
matcrial respects, the financial posttion of the Board as of December 21, 1998 and 1997, and the
results of its operations and cash flows of its proprictary fund and the changes 1in plan net asscts
of 1ts pension trust fund for the vears then cnded 1n confermity with gencrally accepied

accounting principles.

As discussed in note 15, effective January 1, 1997, the enterprise fund financial statements have
been restated as a result of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for
Pensions by State and Local Government Fmployer and the implementation of GASB Statement
No. 32, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal Revenne Code Sectton 457 [eferred

Campensation Plans,

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 9,
1999, on our consideration of the Board's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of
its comphiance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants.

The schedules of funding progress and emplover contributions and the year 2000 wmformation of
the Required Supplementary Information, as listed i the table of contents, are not a required pan
of the gencral purpose financial statemoents, but are supplementary information required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, and we did not audit and do not express an opinion
on such information. We have apphied to the schedules of funding progress and cmplover
contributions certain hmited procedures prescribed by professional standards, which consisted
principally of imquirtes of management regarding the methods of measurcment and presentation
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of the schedules. We were unable 1o apply certamn of these hmited procedures 1o the year 2000
information because of the naturce of the subject matter underlying the disclosure reguirements
and because sufficiently specific criteria regarding the matiers to be disclosed have not been
estabhished.  In addition, we do not provide assurance that the Board s or will become vear 2000
comphant, that the Board's vear 2000 remediation efforts will be successtul in whole or in part,
or that partics with which the Board does business are or will become vear 2000 compliant

Qur audit was performed for the purpose of fenming an optnion on the genceral purpose financial
statements of the Board taken as a whole. The Supplementary Information included in Schedules
| through 4 as Iisted in the table of contents 1s presented for purposces of additional analysis and s
not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the Board.  Such informatoen
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general purpose financial
statcments and, i our opinon, 1s fairly stated in all matenal respects in relation ta the general

purposc financial statements taken as a whole.

The Staustical Information and Supplemental Information sections as histed in the table of
contents are also presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
general purpose financial statcments of the Board.  Such additional information has not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied 1n the audits of the general purpose financial

statements and, accordingly, we express no optnion on i,

LT LIF B * Tervatsn
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN REVENUE INVESTED
ENTERPRISE FUND

For the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997

1598 1997
Opcrating revenuces:
Sales of water and delinguent fees $54.249 822 353,020,290
Seweragpe service charges 319,391,398 38,682,820
Three-mill wax 9,100,244 B,560,805
Six-mif] tax 9.214,065 8,667,999
Nine-mill tay 13,805,848 12,088,17)
Flumbing inspection &nd license fees 24010 228444
Total revenues 126,005,187 __ 122,148,529
Operating Expenses:
Power and pumping 16,986,026 16,568,405
Treatment 11,729,999 12,295,305
Trunsmission and distrnibution 16,607,254 19,739 962
Customer accournts 2,654 955 2,684 148
Customer service 2,740,765 2,745,158
Administration and general 12.806.467 13,676,772
Payroll refated 15,030,622 16,125,486
Mainienance of geseral plant 9,840,897 9,938,320
Depreciation 26,631,640 2589719}
Amortization 217,22) 161,142
Provision for doubtful accounts R37.177 995 435
Provision for claims 1199793 - 7,154,016
Jol8) optrating expenses (123,282,816 127,081,340
Nct operating revenue {(1oss) 2,722 37) _ (3.832.R1])
Non-operating revenues (expense).
Two-mill tax 20,017 17,366
Investment tnconte S.877.860 7,949 404
{"Mher revenue 2. 709,878 2,051,846
Interest expense __{2.858,224) (2.599,896)
Total non-operating revenues 5,749,531 7,418,720
Revenue reinvested ¥.47),v02 1,585,909

Retained earnings - revenue invested:

Beginning of year as restated {note 15) 4R V6B 633 747,382,724
I'nd of vear $757.440.535 3748, 968,633
BN S I LN DR PR o A

Nec sccompanying noles to financiad sistements.
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SEWERAGHE AN WATER BOAKRIYOF NEW OOEL LANS

STATEMENTS OF CASH F1 O0WS

For the vears ended [december 31 1998 and 4437

Clazh flows froem operating sctnues
Caah recerved fiom customen
Froperty taxed receneed
Caah paymnents W sugpliers for
goonds and srmvaces
(Cush payments o emplovees for sennces
(Ahet revenue

et cash provaded by operating & Livities

Cash flows Bom poncapuls! fineng oy
actrvities - procetds fom poptiiy Waies

Cash Nows from capital and redated

financing activiLies
Acquisibion g conatrucuion of capilal assets

Proceeds of bond wssue

Bond usuance costs

Frincipal payments on bonds pavable

interest paid on borcds payabite

Caprta! contniwted by developers and
federal grants

el cash watd for capita) and related linancing
M1ltvilics

Cash flows from thvesling aclnvanies
Peyments for purchase of inviestments
Procecds fiom matunlies of nvesiments
InteTes! on tnvestments

Nelt cash provided by {uaed tn)
INVEStNG ANt

MNel increass (gecreads ) ih carh
Cash at the beganrung of the vear

Cash at the end of the year

Fecone hattom of cath and restncted cash inode )
Churrent axsels - cash
Kestricted asvels - cash

Tows! cash

Reconabnbon of ney ope1auing revenoae 40 1t cash
previded by opersling sctnabies 13 as follows
Net opesaling revienuye (foss )
Add Uthes re enuc

Adyustimenls 1o reconcihe By opcTaling 1evenue
to net caxh peovided by epcraiing actvab ey
[epreciation
Provoson for olaom
Pronanon for doubtful sccommts
ASNOTULZAL 200
Increass e oustorrer mnd other reacnahibes
{Incrcase ) decyoane i taes sevevahle
W TCALE | decredse 1N Inve Lo
(Increase ) decresse w prepaud Cxporoey
Lt eane h acconania payad:le
(Incroanc ) deaacare o el pension gl

LNTERPRISE FUNL

Incyease {docresas ) i wcrued salanes and aceraed

vRCALOn mxd sk pay
I xaiyease o other liaknties

Nct cash provaded by apeor sling activilies

W LRI BoLes 10 [inaw ) simdernent s

M-

1998

arrs prrer

3 92 417085
A2 232,078

(4S 724 K84

19%7

T

¢ 51,243 40
A1 T3 697

(43693 617

(48 537.565) (300.44) 738
DI EIR 0 ZOSLEM
33,096,439 19333614

20.017 17,366

(47.584,232)
51,000, (00
(346,643 )
(7,055 000)
{2.68931))

4,654,756

(1.020.432)

{186 398.704)
318,904,712
7.242.950

(30,75].0542}

345082

1. 059 78D

$ )40 860

1142087
2o TRO

Ilﬂlﬁ?

f47.207 356}
30,000, 00
(21289
(9.50,000)
{2.524.629)

1,445 300

L

(28.009.575)

(252477361
243,223,011
7 485 60%

(1.767.74]

(426,336)

| A485 116

———

$ 1057780

K24 10
215,607

. g

1,059 T80

310371 (5.832.811)
29578 2.051.846

3 432,249 (3.780.96%)
26.63),640 25.897.19]
7,199,793 7154016
137177 995 434
217221 161,142
(1.345.470) (632.020)

111,868 {43,271
(423,442} 382137

185,101 (232.612)
38,442 2407630
{$18.802) 282.9%
(220,940) BI6.027

_(3020398) (407404}
§ 11096539 $ 29,331.614




SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS

PENSION TRUST FUND

I'or the vears ended December 31, 1998 and 1997

Additions:
Contributions:
Employee contributions
Employer contributions
City annuty and other rransfers
Total contributions

lnvestment mcom
Interest mcome
I hvidend 1incore
Nct appreciation
{.ess mvestiment expense
Net investment income
Total additions
PYeductions:
Benefits
mployee refunds
Emplovee contributions to DROP
Interest on DROD investiments
I3cath benefits
Total deductions
Nel increase in plan assels

Plan nct assets at begmning of year

Plan nict asxets at end of year

1998

$ 1,138,043

5402100
46.723

6,580,886

4.191.310
1,267,960

7.858.701]

13,317,971
(127,213}

13,190,750

19,77 7{142

(5.592.1G8)
{(3116,900)
{637.,492)

(22.4061])
(4‘!}642‘_

{6.573.991)

13,203,65)

1] P ok iy

o ik ra p b

See accompanying notes to financial statements,

- &

1997

$ 1.202,02]
5,435,419

497,869

et

e

7.135.309

4,046,760
1,197.180
10.327 891

21.571.83]
(155.554)

21,410,277

28,551,586

(5,611.719)
(283,301)
(474,179)

(11,373)

(6,410,572)

22,141,014

121.268,832

$143,409.846
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SEWTE RAGE AND WATER BOARD O NEEW ORTEANS
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 1OOR and 1007

(1)

i

[ .1 WY Y ——_ e L L s

Summary of Significant Accountimg Pohicies

fistory and Organization

= ErTes - rc = e-—

The major operation of the Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans (the Board) 1s providing
water, sewerage and dramage services for the City of New Orleans (City).

The Sewcerage and Water Board of New Orlecans was created by Act 6 of the Loutsiana Legislatore
of 1899 as a special board independent of the City's governmient to construct, maintain and operate
a waler treatiment and distnibution system and a public sanitary sewerage system for the City. In
1903, the Legislature pave the Board control of and responstbility for the City's major dramage
system and relieved the City of the duty of providing in its annual operating budget or otherwise for
the mamntenance and operations of the water, sewerage and drainage systems,

In accordance with the [ouisiana Revised Statutes (1LRSY 33:4096 and 4121, the Board has the
authority to establish the water and sewerage rates to charge to its customers. The rates are based
on the actual water consumed and on the costs of maintenance and operation of the water and
sewerage systems, including the costs of improvements and replacements. The collections of water
and sewerape rates are 10 be used by the Board for the mamenance and operation of the systems,
the cost of improvements, betteriments, and replacements, and to provide for the pavmems of
interest and principal on the bonds payable. The Board has also becn given the authority to levy
and collect vanious tax millages which are used for the operation and maintenance of the drainage
opcrattons. Al excess revenues collected are made avaitable for capital development of the system.,
The procecds of the rate collections and tax millages are invested in such investments as authorized
by the LRS. These investiments are reflected in the combined balance sheet, as “restricted assets,” as
they are restricted to the purposes as described above,

The Board s composed of thirtcen members, including the Mayor of the Ciy, the two
Councilmembers-at-Large, and one Distriet Councilmember selected by the City Council, two
members of the Board of Liquidation and seven citizens appointed by the Mayor.  The appointed
members of the Board serve staggered nine year terms.

The Board's accounting policies conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable
to utilitics and governmental units. The Jollowing is a summary of the more significant policies.

(A)  Reporting Lntity

-—

In conformity with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's definition of a reporting entity,
the Board mcludes an enterprise fund and a pension trust fund for financial reporting purposes. The
Board 1s considered a reporting entity based on the following criteria:

(a) Responstbility for surplusesf/deficits. The Board is solely responsible for its
surpluses/deficits. In accordance with Louisiana Revised Statutes, no other
governmental umt 1s responsible {or the Board's deficits or has a claim to its
surpluses, The Board's operations are self-sustaining; revenues are generated
through charges 1o customers and dedicated property taxes. Other than grants, no
funding is recetved from the State of Louisiana or the City of New Orleans.

1-10
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEFW ORLEANS

NOTES 1O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(1)

minliele e

Summary of Sigaificant Accounting Policies  (Continued)

(b) Budget Approval. The Board is solely responsible for reviewing, approving and
revising its budget,

(c) Responsibility for Debt, The Louisiana Revised Statutes authorize the Board to
issue bonds; such bonds must bear on their face a statement that they do not
constitute a debt of the City. The Board is solely responsible for pavments to the
bondholders. No other governmemal unit is required by statute to make any
pavments to bondholders nor have any payments to bondholders ever been made
by any governmental unit, except the Board.

(d) Designation of Management. The Board controls the hiring ol management and
cployees.

(¢) Special Financial Relationship. The Board has no special financial relationships
with any other governinental unit.

{f) Statutory Authonty. The Board's statutory authority was created by the State of
[.ouisiana as an independent governmental umit. Only an amendment to state
statutes can change or abolish the Board's authonty.

The Board is a stand-alone entity as defined by GASH Statement 14, The Financial Reporting
Entity. The Board is a legally-separate governmental organization that does not have a separately
clected governing bady and does not meet the definition of a component uait. As a result of a
l.ouisiana Supreme Court decision on March 21, 1994, the Board was declared to be an
autonomous or sclf-governing legal entity, legally independent of the city, state and other
governments, created and organized pursuant to Louisiana Revised Statutes 33:4071 as a board.
separale and independent of the governing authorities of the City and vested with autonomous or
self governing, authonty. No other government can mandate actions of the Board nor mmpose
spectfte financial burdens. The Board is fiscally independent to operate under its bond covenant and

the provisions of Louisiana Revised Statute provisions.

(13) Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting

The operations of the Boeard are accounted for in the following fund types:

Proprictary Fund Type

——r. TRrsar

The proprictary fund i1s used to account for the Board's ongoimmg operations and activities
which are similar to those often found in the private sector. The proprictary fund (s accounted
for using a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all
asscts and all hiabilitics associated with the operation of these funds are weluded on the
balance sheet. Fund equity is segregated into contributed capital and retained carnings, ‘The
operating statements present increases (revenucs) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets,
The Board maintains one proprictary fund type - the enterprise fund. The enterprise fund is

I-11
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{(Continued)

b

()

ol

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies _(Continucd)

....................

[ —— T ) NI - ——mar.

used to account for operations {a) that are financed and operated in a manner suntlar to
privale business enterprises--where the intent of the governing body 1s that the cost
(expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the general public on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through vser charges: or (b) where the
poverning body has decided that periodic determination of revenues camed, expenses
incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital mamntenance. ‘The presentation of the
financial statements of the enterprise fund follows the format recommended by the National

Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners (NARUC).

The balance sheet arrangement for a utility reflects the refative importance of the varnous
accounts. "Property, plant and equipment” is the first major category on the asset side. and
Jong-term capitatization catepories such as fund equity are bsted first on the habibity side,

Current assets and current liabilities are assigned a refatively less important position in the
center of the balance sheect, rather than being placed first as in the balance sheets of

commercial and industrial enterprises.

biduciary Fund Type

The fiduciary fund is used 10 account for assets held by the Board in a trustee capacity or as
an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds.

The Board maintains onc Nduciary fund type - the pension trust fund. The measurement
focus of the pension trust fund is the same as that of the enterprise fund. The pension trust
fund 1s used to account for the activity of the Board's employee retirement plan.

The Board applies all applicable FASB pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989 in
accounting for 1ts enterprise fund and pension trust fund operations unless those pronouncements
conflict with or contradict GASE pronouncements,

(C) Basis of Accounting

o e e e e RN AR R TR ey

The enterprise fund and the pension trust fund prepare their financial statements on the accrual
basis accounting.  Unbilled utility service charges are not recorded as management considers the
clicct of not recording such unbilled receivabies as not material.  Property taxes are recorded as
revenue when collected by the Board's agent. Plan member contributions are recognized in the
period i which contributions are due. Emplover contributions to the plan are recognized when due
and the emplover has made a commitinent 1o provide the contnbutions. Benefits and refunds are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan,

(1))  Investments

——— T e e = g

Investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments (maturity of one year or less) are
yeported at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded in a nationa) or inernational
exchange arc valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. Investments that do
not have an established market are reported at estunated fair value,
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORTEANDS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

(1)

e’

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  (Continned)

—— — s m.EmTETETS

(F) Inventory of Supplies

Inventory of supplies is stated at the Jower of cost or market. Cost is determined by the first-in,
first-out method.

() Property, Plant and Equipment

- r—

Property. plant and equipment are carried at historical cost. The cost of additions nclude
contracted work, dircct labor, materials and aliocable cost. Donated fixed asscts are recorded at
their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Inlerest s capitalized on fixed assets acquired
and’/or constructed with tax exempt debt. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method
over the estimated usciul life of the asset. When assets are retired or otherwise disposed ol the
cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or
loss is recognized in revenue for the period. The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged 10
operations as incurred and significant renewals and betterments are capitalized. Deduction 8 made
for retircments resulting from renewals or betterments. Depreciation on assets acquired through
contributions is charged to fund equity - revenue invested In water, sewerage and drainage system.

—mE————

Vacation (annual leave) and sick pay (sick leave) are accrued when carned. Annual leave is accrued
at the rate of .6923 of a workday for each bi-weekly accroal period for all employees on the payroll
as of December 31, 1978, Employees hired after that date carn leave at a rate of .5 of a workday
per bi-weekly pay peniod. Al employees receive three bonus days each ycear for five through nine
calendar yvears of continuous service; six bonus days cach year for ten through fourtecn years, ninc
bonus days cach year for fifteen through nineteen years; and, twelve days for twenty or more vears
of continuous service. Civil Service's policy permits employees a limited amount of earned but
unused annual leave which witl be paid to employees upon separation from the Board., The amount
shall not exceed ninety days for emplovees hired before January 1, 1979, ang forty-five days for
cmplovees htred afier December 31, 1978,

Sick leave is accumulated on a bi-weekly basis by all employeces hired prior to December 31, 1978
at an accrual ratc of 1923 of a workday. For employvees hired subsequent to December 31, 1978, the
accrual rate 15 .5 of a workday for each bi-weckly period. plus a two day bonus each year for
cmployvees with six through fifteen calendar years of continuous service, and seven bonus days each
year for employees with sixteen or more calendar years of continuous service,

Lipon separation trom the Board, an employee can elect to convert unused sick leave tor retirement
credits or cash. "the conversion to cash (s determined by a rate ranging from one day of pay for five
days of leave for the Tst through 100th leave day to one day of pay for one day of leave {or all days
in excess of the 400th leave day. Fhe total tiability for unconverted sick leave as December 31,
1998 and 1997 1s approximately $14,100,000 and $14,200,000 respectively. “The amount included
i the balance sheet as of December 310 1998 and 1997 s $10,610,110 and $10,564,632
respectively, which represents the converted sick leave since virtually all employees convert their
sick leave to cash. The amounts for compensated absences include the salary cost as well as certain
salary relimted costs, such as the Board's share of social security expense.
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW OREEANS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continned)

R ey et o

(1) Summary of Sipnificant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(1)  Pension

The Board funds the accrued pension cost for its contributory pension plan which covers
substantially all employees. Annual costs are actuartally computed using theentry age normal cost

meothod.

()  Dramage System

c——— —gymF I T

In 1903. the Legislature gave the Board control of and responsibility for the City's drainage system.
The Drainage System was established as a department of the enterprise fund to account for the
revenues from three-null, six-mill and nine-mill ad valorem taxes designated exclusively for
drainage services, These revenues have been supplemented by inspection and license fees collected
by the Board. There exists a potential for additional financing by additional user service charges,

Expenditures from the system are for the debt service of three-mill, six-mitl and nine-mill tax bonds
and drainage related operation, maintenance and construction.

Although not preseatly financed by user charges related to direct usage, the usual revenue source
for an enterpnise fund activity, the financing by dedicated millages or properties serviced, and the
unique character of the services provided by the drainage system of the City, require enterprise fund
accounting to provide meanmpgful mcasurement of cost of services and capital maintenance of the
system.  As such, property taxes are presented as operating revenues except for the two-mill tax,
which is dedicated for capital improvements.  Additionally, becausc of the pecuhiar geography of
the City, the proviston of drainage service is essential for the operation of water and sewerage
systems,  The dramage system operaton and maintenance expenses include costs  directly
associated with the provision of dramage services as well as substantial allocated costs resulting
from utilization of common resources such as administrative services, maintenance, equipment, and

power generation and transmission.

()  Secif-Insurance/Risk Management

The Board s self-insured for general  hability, worker's  compensation,  unemployment
compensation and hospitalization benefits and clatims. The acerued labihty for the various types of
claims represents an estimate by management of the eventoal loss on the claims arising prior to
vear-cnd, including ¢laims incurred and not yet reported. The accrued liability and related expense
also includes estimates of both future payments of losses and related claims adjustments agreement
cxpense both allocated and unallocated. Estimated expenses are based on a case by case review.
bstimated recoveries have also been considered by management in assessing the estimated losses.

(k) Contributed Capital

-

Contributions from developers and others, and receipts of Federal, State and City grants for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment are recorded as contributed capital in fund equity.
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARID OF NEW ORTEEANS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

e o -

(1)

(

)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies _ (Continued)

(I.) Bond Issue Cost and Refinancing Gains (l.osses)

Costs related to issuing bonds are capitalized and amortized based upon the methods used to
approximate the interest method over the life of the bonds. Begmning with fiscal years in 1994 and
thereafier, pains and losses associated with refundings and advance refundings are being deferred
and amortized based upon the methods used to approximate the interest method over the life of the
new bonds or the remaining term an any refunded bond, whichever 15 shorter.

(M) Total Columns on Combuned Statements

Total cotlumns on the Combined Statements are captioned “Memorandum Only™ ta indicate that
they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis, Data in these columns do not present
financial position, results of opcrations, or cash {lows, in conformity with gencrally accepted
accounting principles. Such data is not comparable to a consolidation since interfund eliminations

have not been made.

(N) Cash Flows

Fos pueposes of the statement of cash flows, oaly cash on hand and on deposit at {inancial
institutions ar¢ considered to be cash equivalents. Certificates of depostits, tfreasury bills and other

securities are considercd investments,

The following are the components of the Board's cash and investments at December 31, 1998 and
1997

Unrestricted _ Restricted _ Total
ecember 31, 1998
Cash:
Fnterprise fund $ 1,142,082 & 262,780 % 1,404,862
Pension trust fund 28486 - .. 28486
1,170,568 262,780 1.433,348
Certificates of deposit - 94206790 94,226,790
Total carrying amount of deposits 1,170,568 04,489,570 95,660,138
[nvestments:
Enterprise fund . 57.129 444 57.129 444
Pension trust fund Jdseg48.020 - 156,848,020

$ 158.018588 $ 151.619.014 $ 309,637,602

Al - e u P LU il 5 A S Hicjlan Il Sl o -
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORI.EANS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{(Continued)
{2) Cash and Investments (Continued)
Unrestricted  Restricted  Total
December 31, 1997
Cash:
Enterprise fund $ 824,17] 235,609 1,059,780
Pension trust fund .. 1832006 - 183266
1,007,437 235,609 1,243,046
Certificates of deposit T 20,998,781 90998781
Total carrying amount of deposits 1,007,437 922,007,200 62.007.200
Deferred compensation - mutual fund . 1,008,419 1,008,419
Investments:
Enterprise fund - 23,442,256 23,442,256
Pension trust fund 142914927 - 142914927
$ 143,922 264 115.685.015 259,607,379
The composition of investments is as follows:
1998 1997
Carrying Carrving
... Yalue - Valve  Category
Enterprise Fund:
LIS, Government Securtties and
Instrumentalitics \ - 1,018,561 I
ULS. Government Securities and
Instrumentalitics 56,879,444 22,423,695 2
Repurchase Agreements 250,000 - 3
Deterred Compensation Mutual Fund L0049 i
$ 57,129 444 _ 24450675
Pension Trust Fund:
Money Market 5,642,033 4.317,09] -
Corporate Bonds 30,002,149 25,787,655 2
LES. Government Agency 22,583,998 21,732,747 2
U.S. Government Securittes 4,958,047 2.821.956 2
LS. Government Insured 7,509,117 4.974. 186 2
1:*{|L!ili£'5 86:-]52*6?6 . 78*28 ].rQ?Z_ : 2

$ 156,848,020 § 142 914,927

el S kel P e Bl ] L PP | M i
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SEWERAGLE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW OREEANS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(3)

Cash and Investments (Continued)

AL d g s [ T R S —

Cash and Certificates of Deposit - At December 31, 1998, the bauk balances of the Board's cash
totaled $3.521,141 and certificates of deposit totalled $94.226,790. Of the cash bank balance.
$272.003 is covered by its federal depository insurance. At December 31, 1997, the bank balances
of the Board’s cash totalled $3,072.818 and certificates of deposit totalled $90.998.781. Of the
cash bank balance. $332.394 1s covered by its federal depository insurance. The remaining amount
of the Board's cash bank balances and all certificates of depostt for 1998 and 1997 were entirely
covered by collateral held by custodial agents of the financsal instuitutions in the name of the Board.

Investments - Statutes authorize the Board to invest in obligations of the ULS. Treasury, agencics,
and instrumentalitics, commercial paper rated A-1 by Standard & Poor's Corporation or P-1 by
Moody's Commercial Paper Record, bankers' acceptances and repurchase agreements. In addition,
the pension trust fund is authorized to invest in corporate bonds rated A or better by Standard &
Poor’s Corporation or AAA or better by Moody's Investors Service, and equity securities,

The Board's investments at December 31, 1998 and 1997 are categorized above to give an
indication of the level of risk assumed by the Board at year-end, Category 1 includes imvestments
that are insured or registered or securities which are held by the Board or its agents in the Board's
name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments with the securities held by the
counterparty’s trust department or agent in the Board's name, Category 3 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments where the sccurities are heid by the counterparty or by its trust department
or agent but not 1n the Board's name.

———TEmT AT T TCiam e

The Board has a single employer cantributory retirement plan (Employces’ Retirement System of
the Sewerage and Water Board) covering all full-ttme and c¢ertain part-time employees, the Penstion
Trast Fund (PT}). The Board's payroll for current employces covered by the PTF for the years
ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 was $31,544,198 and $32,772.094, respectively; such amounts
exclude overtime and standby payroll. Total payroll, including overtime and standby pavroll, was
$38,384.730 and $40,181,752 for the years ended December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively. At
December 31, the PTEF membershin consisted of’

L 498 1997
Retirees and beneficiances currently recetving
benefits and terminated employees entitled
to benefits but not yet receiving them I .
Current employecs:
Vesled 848 860
Nonvested o B33 AR
Lohast NS
Total 2,036 2. 14]

PR U Eab el B aliei A U, o .
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANDS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Contmued)

(3)

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Conunued)

SEAE.SN N IEEE LEAN LML RS- -8

The benefit provisions were established by action of the Board of 1956 in accordance with
[ .ouisiana statutes.  The Board retains exclusive control over the plan through the Pension
Committee of the PTEF, Effcctive January 1, 1996, the plan became quahificd under Internal

Revenue Code Section 401(a) and thus 1s tax exempt.

The plan provides for retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. All benefits vest
after ten vears of service. Employecs who retire at or after age sixty-1wo with ten years of credited
service are entitied to an annual retirement benefit, payable biweckly for life in an amount equal to
two percent of their average compensation for each year of credited service up to ten years,
increasing by (1) one- lmlfpcmrnl per year for service years over ten years, (2) an additional one-
half percent per yvear for service years over twenty years and (3} an additional one percent per year
for service years over thirty years, for a maximum of four percent for cach year of credited service.
Average compensation is the average annual carned compensation less $1.200 tor the penod of
thirty-six successive months of service during which the employee's compensation was the highest.
Emplovees with thirty years or more of credited service may retire without a reduction in benefits.

Lmployees may retire prior to age sixty-two without thirty years of service with a reduction of three
percent for each year of age below the age of sixty-two. If an employee leaves covered employment
or dics before three years of credited service, the accumulated employee contributions plus related
investment carnings are refunded te the cmplayee ar designated beneticiary.

The retirement allowance for retirees over age sixty-two is subject to a cost of hiving adjustment
cach lanuary 1, provided that the member retired on or after January 1, 1984, The adjustment s
based on the increasce in the Consumer Price Index for all urban wage carners published by the ULS.
Department of Labor, but is limited to an annval maximum of two percent on the first $10.000 of
mitiat retirement benefits, Effective September 23, 1993, emploveces may transfer credit between
the Board's plan and the City of New Orleans retirement system with full credit for vested service.

The Board and 1ty cnmlm'uus ar¢ obligated under plan provisions to make all required contributions

to the plan. The required contributions are actuarially determined and include current service costs
and amornhization of the unfunded actuarial habilitv over 6 yecars using the level pereentage of
pavroll method. Level percentage of payroll employer contribution rates are determined using the
entry age normal actuarial funding method. Employees are required to contribute four percent of
their regalar salaries or wagces in excess of $1,200 amually.

The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 31,
1998 actuanial valuation vsing the entry age normal cost method.  The actuarial assumptions
included (a) 7. 0% mvestment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and (b) projected salary
increases of 5.0% per year. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 2.0%. The
actuarial mlue of asscts was determined using a seven-vear weighted market average.,  The
unfunded actuarial accrued liabihity is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payrol) on
a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 1998 was 6 vears.
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORI B ANS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(3)

-

Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

The enterprise fund’s net pension assct for the years ended December 31 were as follows:

L. r998 o 1997
Annual required contribution $  4.696,092 5,701,361
Interest on net pension obligation (34.623) (54,430)
Adjustment to annual required contribution o h16926 0 158,125
Annual pension cost 4,776,395 5,805,056
Contributions madc 5315197 5522097
Increase (decrease) in net pension asset 538,802 (282,959)
Net pension assct at beginning of year CoLL A94ae1y o 777,570
Net pension asset at end of year $ 1033413 494,611
Trend information is as follows:
Annual Percentage of
Pension Cost APC Net Pension
. AAPC)  Contributed | Asset
Fiscal vear ending:
December 31, 1998 $  4.776.395 111% $  1,033.413
December 3], 1997 $ 5805056 G5% $ 494 611
December 31, 1996 $ 4914655 1 15% $ 777.570

The actuanally determined contribution requirement for the Board is 16.85 percent and for
cmployecs ts 4.0 percent. The actual Board's and employee's contributions (including contributions
for transferred employees from other pension plans) for vears ended December 31 are as follows:

Employer $ 5315197 5,522,097
Employee oA daep2s o 1382921
Total contributions $ 6464422 6,905,018

DROP

Begimntng in 1996, the Board offered employees a “Deferred Retirement Option Plan” (DROP), an
optional retirement program which allows an employee to clect to freeze his or her retirement
benefits, but continue to work and draw a salary for a minimum period of one year to a maxinum
peniod of three years. While continuing employment, the retirement benefits are scpregated from
overall plan assets available to other participants. As of December 31, 1998 and 1997, 33 and 20
ciiployees, respectively, participated in the plan. The amount of plan assets for these individuals
wias $1, 145539 and $579.636 as of December 31, 1998 and (997, respectively,
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SEFWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

S

(-1}  Property, Plant and Equipment

——ero L LT b —

Property, plant and equipment consisted of the fotlowing:

Water Department

Property, plant and equipment in service:
Real estate rights
Power and pumping stations:
Buildings
Machinery
Distribution systems
Connections and mcters
Fuel o1l tanks
Power transmission
General plant items
Buildings

Total property, plant and equipment in
SCTVICC

Add:  property, plant and equipment in
Progress

1 otal property, plant and equipment
[.¢ss: accumulated depreciation

Nct property, plant and equipment -
water department

.. 1998

2.808 138

44,398,682
88,841,243
100,289,922
23,114,372
138,373
7,211,840
60,084,207

_3,094.263

330,071,040

L 45,064,645

375,735,685

232,873,805

H-20

142,861,880

N b L

2,898,138

43,809,849
88,018,989
08,273.670
23,114,372
138,373
6,899,510
55,554,499

[Ty

321,831,663

37,773,996

. e ——— e ——

359,605,659

133,145,466

226,460,193

_3.094,263

——— = ———tt

_Useful Lives

57 vears
40 vears
75 years
50 vears
50 years
50 years
12 vears
25 years




SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORILEANS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

(4)  Propenty, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

Sewerage Department

Property, plant and cquipment in scrvice:
Real estate rights
Power and pumping stations:
Buildings
Machinery
Sewer
House connections
Power transmission
Treatment plants
General plant items
Builldings

Total property, plant and equipment in
service

Add: property, plant and equipment in
pProgress

Total property, plant and equipment
I.css: accumulated depreciation

Net property, plant and equipment -
scwerage department

1998

E N FETTEN T —_———————

878,916

19,991,745
21,323,152
105,010,551
10,918,450
4,529,913
91,511,921
40,350,303

-_——

295,851,922

83,645,988

T—=trr mirErar-cirw.am

379,497.910

110,341,117

269,156,793

11-21
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1997

878.9106

19,971,122
20,782,554
100,616,36)
10,918,450
4.529.913
85,803,948
39,419,265

1,336,971

284,257,500

L 13,031,765

357,289,265

102,929,839

204,359,426

_Useful Lives

57 Years
40 Years
75 Years
50 Years
50 Years
50 Years
12 Years
25 Years
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SEWERAGE AND WATIEER BOARD OF NI-W ORLEANS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

—

o198 19
Dramage Depariment
Property, plant and equipment in service:
Real estate rights 3 3,582,588 3,582,588
Power and pumping stations:
Buildings 93,107,832 93,103,178
Machinery 88.807,805 88,763,829
Canals 187.718,479 186,451,648
Sub-surface drain 8,574,174 8,574,174
Power transmission 10,915,658 10,911,942
Gieneral plant items 33,787,625 33,476,680
Buildings Le84270 2,584,271
Total propenty, plant and equipment 1n
SETVICE 429.078.,432 427,448,310
Add: property, plant and equipment n
progress _A1322.965 0 33.810.144
Total property, plant and equipment 470,401,397 461.258,454
l.ess: accumulated depreciation 108,161,824 G99 454 420
Ncet property. plant and equipment -
dramage department L 362,239,573 - 361,804,025
All Departiments
Total property, plant and equipment 1,225,634.992 1.178,153,378
l.ess accumulated depreciation L 301,364,821 335,529,734
Net property. plant and equipment - Al
departments $  804,270,17) 842.623 644

Useful Lives

s

57 Years
40 Years
100 Years
75 Years
50 Years
12 Years
25 Years

Interest capitalized in 1998 and 1997 is immaterial to the total in property, plant and equipment.
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Conuinued)

L

(5) Customer Kecelvables

(C'ustomer receivables at December 31, 1998 and 1997 consist of the following:

Alowance
Customer for Doubtful
__Accounts  Accounts  Net
1998 Water $ 7.759.475 % 2. 180,206 % 5,579.269
Sewer LLA233610 0 1.069.802 0 3,163 808
§ 11993085 $  3.250,008 § _ §.743.077
1 947 Water % 7.502 284 § 2324579 § 5.267.710
Sewer C 4035009 0 0 1,147,383 2 RB7.626
$ 11627293 $ 3471957 S 8.155.336

(6) Dug from the City of New Orleans

In accordance with the terms of an agreement in principle with the City of New Orleans, the Board
and the City agreed to offset $2,098.687 (net of unearned discount $285,696) owed by the City to
the Board at the rate of $200,000 annually in licu of civil service charges through 2009, As of
December 31, 1998 $1,375,519 was due from the City of New Orleans.

(7)  Contributed Capital

The following is a summary of changes in contributed capital by source:

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
L. 1998 Additions 1998
Municipality $ 8.868.396 - £.868,396
Developers and others 66,037,158 623,150 66,660,308
bederal and State 27,756,374 4047495 61,803,869
$ 132166]_.22? ___3,6“?01645 | 13?,3.”.12,57.}_
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SEWERAGHE ANID WATER BOARD OF NEW OKLEEANS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)
(7)  Contributed Capital (Continued)
Balance
January 1,
1997
Municipality ! 8.868.396
Developers and others 65,698,603
Federal and State 56,226,539
$ 130.793.538
(8) Bonds Pavable

Balance
December 31,
_Additions 1997
- 8.868.396
338.555 66,037,158
] 868,390 ______1_32,661,928

Bonds payable consisted of the following as of December 31

Descriptions

[Ea— - el — e —

7.00% water revenue bonds, senies 1986 due in
annual principal installments ranging from
$435,000 1o $2,055,000; final payment duc
December 1, 2003

7.00% drainage svstem bonds, series 1986 B,
due 1 annual principal installments ranging
trom  $3.360,000 to $3.600,000: final

payment December |, 1998

4.30% 1o 6.25% sewerage revenue bond, series
1997, duc 1o annual principal installments
ranging from $855,000 to $2.425,000:; final
payment due June 1, 2017

5.00% to 5.15% drainage system bonds, series
1994, duc in annuval principal installments
ranging from $935.000 to $1,140,000; final
payment due November 1, 2003

5.00% water revenuc bonds, serics 1998, duc in
annual principal installments ranging from
$240,000 1o §1,220,000; final pavment duc
December 1, 2018

11-24
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1998 1997
5,355,000 7,115,000
- 3,600,000
29,200,000 30,000,000
5,170,000 6,065,000
16,000,000 -




SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

P il

(8) Bonds Pavable (Continued)
... Lrincipal Balances
Descriptions reos 1991
5.00% sewer revenue bonds, series 1998, duc
in annual principal installments ranging
from $375,000 to $1,910,000:; final payment
duec December 1, 2018 § 25,000,000 -
5.00% drainage system bonds, series 1998, due
in annual principal installments ranging
from $300,000 to $760,000;, final payment
due December 1, 2018 10,000,000 e
90,725,000 46,780,000
I.¢ss current maturities 4,605,000 _ 7,055,000
$ 86,120,000 39,725.000
The annual requirements to amortize all bonds payable as of December 31, 1998 including interest
payments of $48,432,622 are as follows:
Revenue
Year ...Bonds  TaxBonds = Total
1999 \ 7,300,409 1,994 820 9,295,226
2000 8,041,122 1,994,770 10,035,892
2001 6,274,282 1,996,250 8,270,532
2002 6,264,316 1,988,546 8,252,862
20073 6,248,279 1,986,812 8,235,001
2004-2008 28,410,052 3.911,480 32,321,532
2009-2013 28,637,792 3,969,842 32,607,634
2014-2018 .26,163,564 3975286 30,138,850
Total $ 117,339,816 21,817,806 139,157,622

The indentures under which these bonds were issued provide for the establishment of restricted

funds for debt service as follows:
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b, Debt service funds are required for the payvment of interest and principal on the revenue and tax
honds.  Monthly deposits on revenue bonds are required 1o be made into this fund from
operations in an amount equal to 1/6 of the mterest falling due on the next interest paviment
date. and an amount cqual to 1/12 of the principal falling due on the next principal payment
date.  All debt service funds are admimstered by the Board of lLiquidation.  The required
amount to be accumulated i this fund was $011,086 and $387,717 at December 31, 1998 and
1997, respectively: the accumulated balance at December 31, 1998 and 1997 was $1,603.606

and $1.018.313, respectively,

A debt service reserve 1s required for an amount equal te but not less than fifty percent of the
amount required to be credited in said month to the debt service fund until there shall be
accumulated in the debt service reserve account the largest amount required in any future
calendar year to pay the principal and interest on outstanding bonds, except for the water, sewer
and 1986 drainage 9 mill tax bonds.  The water, sewer and 1986 drainage 9 mill tax bonds
require an amount equal to the largest amount requited in any future calendar year to pay the
principal of and interest on outstanding bonds, There ts no debt service reserve required for the
1994 drainage 6 mli and 1998 drainage 9 mill tax bonds.  The required amount to be
accumulated in this fund was $8.028,490 and $9.338,975 at December 31, 1998 and 1997,
respectivelyy the accumulated balance at December 31, 1998 and 1997 was $8.064.911 and

$9.575.100, respectively.

T2

The net operating revenues of the Water Department and the Sewerape Departnent of the Board for
the year ended December 31, 1998 were adequate 1o mect the bond indenture reguired debt service
coverage of 130 percent. The Board is in compliance with the requirements of its long-term debt

agrecments at December 31, 1998,

The statatory limit of 1ax bonds at December 31, 1998, ts 386,000,000 providing a debt margin for
tax bonds of $70.830.000.

Bond Refinancing

e e Bk ey — T LR P ¢ e e

In August 1986, the Board defeased water and sewer bonds.  The amount of defeased revenue
bonds remainimg outstandimg as of December 31, 1998 and 1997, was $5.190,000 and $6.930.000,

respectively.

Dhue to Oy of New Oirleans

e — AR —

The Board bills and collects sanitation charges on behalf of the City of New Orleans (City). The
Board is not hable for any uncollected samitation charges. The amount due the City for sanitation
fees collected was $211,352 and $254,409 at December 31, 1998 and 1997, respectively.

Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied by the City of New Orleans. Taxes on real and personal property attach as
an enforeeable lien on the property as of January 1. Taxces are levied on January 1, are pavable on
January 1. and are delinguent on Febrouary 1
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(12)

Piihlinl

urm 1t

The assessed value of the property is determined by an clected Board of Assessors. The assessed
value for 1999 was $1.796,457.432. The combined tax rate dedicated for the Board for the years
ended December 31, 1998 and 1997 was $22.59 per $1,000 of assessed valuation. These dedicated
funds are available for operations, maimenance, construction and extension of the dramage system

(except for subsurface systems),

Commuitments

a. Capital Improvements

At December 31, 1998, the Board's budget for its five year capital improvements program totalled
$621.910,000 including $204,498,000 for watcr, $187,598.000 for sewerage and $220 814,000 for
drainage. Due to certain repulatory and legislative changes. additional capital improvements will
probably be required. Future capital improvement program expenditures may require the 1ssuance
of additional debt depending on the amount and timing of expenditures. As of December 31, 1998,
the Board has committed or appropriated $59,155,828 in investments for use 1n future capital
projects and has $67,408,922 of bond proceeds remaining for construction. The capital project

investments are included in restricted asscts.,
The capital improvements budget for 1999 1s $92,172,000.

Significant projects included in property, plant and equipment in progress as of December 31, 1908
include the following:

Filter Improvements at the Carrollton Water Treatment Plant

City-wide Sewer Rehabilitation Programs
Drainage Pumping Station 4]

b. Scli-insurance

The Board is self-insured for gencral liability, worker's compensation, unemployment
compensation and hospitalization benefits and claims, Settled claims have not exceeded excess
coverage in any of the past three fiscal ycars, Hospitalization bencfits and unemployment

compensation are charged to payroll related expense.

General Jiability claims are segregated internally by “claims” and “suits™ depending on the scope
and type of claim, and are handled by the Office of the Special Counsel and Administrative
Scervices, Individual general liability losses have ranged from 315 to $1,000,000, tllustrating the
volatility of this exposure. The provision for claims expense for 1998 and 1997 amounted to

$2,102,500 and 33,600,911, respectively.

Worker's compensation expense provision for 1998 and 1997 amounted to $710,803 and
($512,325), respectively.
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The Board is responsible under state statute for ali unemployment compensation claims by former
emplovees. The Board's expense provision for unemployment amounted to $18,874 i 1998 and
$7.246 in 1997 and is included in payroll related expense. The expense provision for

unemployment is recognized when incurred.

The hospitalization self-insurance benefits are administered by Blue Cross of Louissana.  The
Board's expense provision in excess of the employee contributions for 1998 and 1997 amounted
approximately $6.100,000 and $5,800.000 respectively, and is included in payroll related expense.

Changes in the claims payable amount 1s as follows:

Current
Ycar
Claims and
Beginning Estimate Contract Claim
Fiscal Year  ofYear ~ Change  Adjustments  Payments  Endof Year
$

1997 14,835,262 8,986,603 600,000 4,356,528 20,065,397
1908 S 20,065,397 7,295,767 - 4,386,489 22.974,675

The composition of ¢claims payablc is as follows:

~_Short Term Claims Liability

Health
Incurred Total Short lL.ong-Term Total
biscal Workers’ But Mot General Term Workers Claims
Year ~ Compensation  Reported _ Liability —  Clatms  Compensation  Liability
1997 S 317,495 1.029,780 13,694,508 15,041,783 5,023,614 20,065,397
1908 S 308.610 1125213 15,797,550 17,231,400 5,743,260 22,974,675

In addition to providing pension benefits, the Board provides certain health care benefits for retired
cmployees in accordance with its pension plan provisions. All of the Board's emplovecs may
becorne cligible for those benefits if they reach pormal retirement age while working for the Board.
The cost of retiree health care is recognized when incurred including an estimate for the amount
incurred but not vet reported. For 1998 and 1997, the costs incurred by the Board {or those benefits
were approximately $1,400,000 and $1,420,000, respectively. The number of participants currently
clipible to receive post-ecmployment health care benefits is 606 and 614 as of December 31, 1998

and 1997, respectively,
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)

c. Regulatory Matters

The Board, as well as other utilities, is subject to environmental standards imposcd by federal, state
and local environmental laws and regulations, The Board has entered into a consent decree with the
United States which allows the Board to go forward with its major program to repair and
rchabilitate the sewerage system while drawing on a $100 million commitment from the United
States. The Board expended $6,130,062 of the commitment at December 311998, The overall
costs of the program is estimated at $200 million over a period ending in 2007, In addition to this
program, the Board will pay fines of $1.5 mithon, of which $500.000 has been paid at December
31. 1998, and will provide a supplemental environment project of $2.0 nilhon to improve water
quality. These costs are included in claims pavable on the Enterprise Fund balance sheet. The Board
15 also participating in Federal financial award programs which are subject to financial and
compliance audits by various agencies. No disallowed costs have been identified. As part of Federal
and other povernmental agency funding: the Board is required to match a portion of funding
received. The Board does not foresce any problems in its matching requirements,

Ammo—arroaas-

— ——rr -

The Board offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457, This plan, available 10 all employees, permits them to defer a portion
of their salary untl future years, The deferred compensation is not available to emplovees until
tlermination, retircment, death, or unforesecable emergency.,

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property, and rights purchased with those
amounts, and all mcome attributable to those amounts, property or nights are (until paid or made
avatlable to the employee or other beneficiary) solely the property and rights of the Board without
being restricted to the provisions of benefits under the plan). subject only to the claims of the
Board's general creditors. The Board's responsibility includes oversecing the use of the plan assets,
which are recorded at a market value of $1,008,419 as of December 31, 1997, The assets and
corresponding participants' hability are recorded on the balance sheet in restricted assets and in
long-term habilitics. Participants' rights under the plan are equal to those of general creditors of the
Board in an amount equal to the fair market value of the deferred account for cach participant. As
explained n note 15, GASB 32 was implemented and the assets and liabilities related to this plan
were removed from the financial statements in 1998, The assets of the plan totalled $1,495,798 at

December 3], 1998,

(14) Budgets

Opcerating and capital expenditure budgets are adopted by the Board on a basis consistent with
generally accepted accounting principles. While not legally required, this budgetary information is
cmployed as a management control device during the year.  Comparison between actual and
budgeted expenses is not a required presentation for an Enterprise Fund.
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(15) Recent Accounting Pronouncements and Prior Period Adjustments

Iinplemented Pronouncements

———

In November 1994, GASB issued Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and 1 .ocal
Governmental Emplovers which was effective for fiscal yvears beginning after June 30, 1997, The
statcment  established standards for the measurement recognition and display of pension
expenditures/expense and related liabilities, assets, note disclosures and required supplementary
information in the financial statements of state and local governmental emplovers. This statement
is effective retroactively to December 31, 1996, The impact of the implementation of this

statement on the enterprise fund is as follows:

January 1, 1997 retained carnings, as
previously reported

$ 746,605,154

Prior period adjustiment to reflect GASRE 27

implementation 17,570
January 1, 1997, retained earmings, as

restated 747,382,724
1997  revenue invested, as  previously

rﬂ’p(}rl{:d $ ] iSGS,B()S
Prior period adjustment to reflect GASH 27

nplementation (2829593
1997 revenue mvested, as restated ~_1,585.909

December 31, 1997, retained carnings  as

restated $ 748,968,633

In October 1997, GASRB issued Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financtal Reporting for Internal
Revenue Code Scection 457 Deferred Compensation_ Plans, which is effective for periods beginning

R ] Ny ey - N Ny LN L Lp—

LY T T TR R T S

after December 31, 1998 or when plan assets are held in trust under the requirements of IRC
Section 457, subsection (), if sooner. This Statement addresses the changes in the Internal Revenue
Code requiring all 457 plans to be held in trast as defined under the Code. As 457 plans are held in
trust, the governmental entity will no longer reflect the assets and corresponding liability of these
types of plans on its balance sheet. The implementation of this statement removed the deferred
compensation restricted assetl and the offsetting liability to participants from the balance sheet of
the bBnterprise Fund durimg 1998 The assets and corresponding liability for the deferred
compensation plan are not recorded on the balance sheet of the Enterprise fund as of Deceimnber 31,

1908,

11-30




— — — e— — — — — — — — — — — T T T TR T T T T T T T T

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
(GASB STATEMENT NO. 25}
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Actuanal
Valuation
Date

12/31/98

12/31/97

12/31/96

SEWERAGE AND WA'TER BOARD

Required Supplementary Informaton Under GASH Staternent No. 28

Actuanal
Valuc of

Assels

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Aciuarial
Accrued
Liahihty

{AAL)

Unfunded
AAL

$134,901,231
$120,911.255

$114.805.212

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

Year
Ended

148.431.620

141.228.850

133,132.206

Annual

Required
Conltribution

13.530.389

20,317,595

18,326,994

Actyal

Contribution

Schedule

Lnfunded

AAl asa

Funded Covered pcreentage

Ratio Pavroll of payroll
90.80% J1.544 198 42 9%
B5.60% 32172094 62 00%
86.20% 33,718,695 54.40%

Percentage

Contributed

12/31/98
12/31/97
12/31/96
12/31/95
12/31/94
12/31/93

$4,696,092
3,701,361
4913488
4.942 987
4,916,008
4,830,648

35,315,197

5.522.097
3,681,600
5.383.925
5.085.002
5,096,832

113.20%
98.60%

115.60%
108.90%
103.40%
105.50%

See accompanying tndependent auditors’ report.



Schedule 2

SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD

Required Supplementary Information Under
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Technical Bulictin 99-]
Disclosures about Year 2000 [ssucs
(Unaudiicd)

The Sewerage and Water Board of New Orleans (the Board) 1s 1n compliance with the Governmental Accountng
Standards Board (GASB) Technical Bulleun 98-1, (Disclosures about Year 2000 lssues) 1ssued October 199§,
and s i complhiance with GASB Technical Bullctin 99-1, Amendment to Technical Bulietin 98- 1ssued March
29, 1999 for financial statements dated after October 31, 1998, The following stages bave been implemented
or are n propress. The Board 's Information Svstems has established a budgcet project plan for dealing with the

Yecar 2000 1ssue.

The Sewerage and Water Board has two general areas that are being addressed: business operations and service
operations. In the business area, the Board has completed its assessment program for business systems and has

been modifying andfor upgrading computer applications and cquipment for the Year 2000, This cffort covers
both mainframe systems and LLAN Syvstems. Modifications are expected to be fully tested and nstalled by the

third quarter of 1999,

The business svsiems include: cashiering (tellers and remittance processors), customer account management
(billing. collection, work orders). financial (including purchasing), human resources, mamnframe operating systems
and hardware, LAN Systems and scrver hardware, networked PCs and LAN based application software. Stand
alonc PCs and application software is being addresscd on a department by department basis. Stand-alone PCs

arc not critical to normal business operations.

in the service area, the Board has had on-going assessment of the impact of Year 2000 on service operations,
wcluding water treatment, quality testing and distribution, sewage collection and treatment, drainage, and power

generator distribution

115 the Board s opinion, at this time that process control systems and PC control systems will be minimally
affected by the vear 2000 and basic service operations will continue. However, the complected asscssment will
venfy this effort The Board will take the necessary action to ensure that basic service opcrations continuc in the

vear 2000,

The Board 1s also assessing supply issues that arc critical to service operations. The Sewerage and Water Board
normally uses power, chemicals and supplics from third partics. Although the Board cannot ensure that all third
parties will not have problems during the year 2000, we have made the necessary inquiries and have not been

made aware of any known problems,

The dewerage and Water Board has the capacity (o generate power for many of our drainage pumps and some
of our sewerage pumps, and waler treatment plants. Other supply 1ssucs are being examined and additional stores
may be purchased prior to year 2000 o ensure all critical items are on hand in case third party vendors are not

able to supply o1 dehiver materials.

Sce accompanying independent auditors” report.
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S&WB employees are on duty
around the clock {0 recetve
customer calls about breaks in
witer, sewerage and drainage
ines and connections or
lcaking fire hydrants. Crews are
dispatched from a central
emaorgency center 1o job sites.
Some 50,000 work orders are
Issued each year,

A Dreak in alarge sewer torce
main, like the one here. re-
quires nnmediate attention from
a crew of speciahsts from the
Networks Department. Emer-
gency operators, dispatchers
and field crews are on duty 24
hours & day. seven days @
werk 10 respond to a vanety of
sttuations which requure a guick
TOSPONSE.
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Number of Mitls

SEWLERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORI EANS

Property Tax Rates - [hirect and Overlapping Governmenis

(Ver $1.000 of assessed value)

[.ast Ten Fiscal Years
{Unaudited)

Fiscal

Ciy of

Yzar New Qrlcans

1988
1989
1990
1991

19G2%*

1993
1694
1995
1996
1997

Source: City of New Oricans

*The Homestead Exemption is not allowed for the 9-Mill Police and Fire Tax.

58.28
$8.28
58.2K
7118
75.80
75.90
75.90
75.90
77.09
77.09

11.29
11.29
11.29
11.2¢
12.01]
11.29
12.01
12.0]
12.01
12.01

{hrleans

Levee Board New Orleans »ehool Board

Sewerage &
Water Board

of

25.23
25.23
25.23
25.23
22.59
22.59
22.59
22.59
22.59

22.59%¢%*

Orleans

Parish

25.99
42.39
42.39
42.39
4510
45.10
45.10
45.10
45.40
45.40

Audubon
Park &
200

4.27
4.21
4,27
4.27
4.55
4.55
4.55
4.55
4.55
4.55

**Millage rates were adjusted upward to compensate for a decrease In assessment values,

***3 mills adapted tn 1967 Expires in 2017

*3*6 mills adopted in 1978 Expires in 2028

***9 mills adopied in 1982 expires in 2032

1H-5

Total

126.18
142 .58
142.58
155.48
161.24
160.62
161.34
161.34
161.64
161.64
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORIEANS

Computation of Direct and Overjapping Debt

December 31, 1998

{Unaudited)
Net
Outstanding Percentage Overlapping
D B+, S Overiapping Debl
[yirect debt:
Sewcerage and Water Board, 2]15.142.866 100% $l§_14?.866
net of debt service funds
{tax bonds only)
Owverlapping debi:
City of New QOrleans 462,641,000 100% 462,641,000
Audubon Park Commission 61,673,000 100% 61,673,000
Orleans Parish School Board (1) 365,475,518 100% 365,475,518
Orleans Levee District (1) 120,521,600 100% 120,521,000
Tolal overlapping debt 1,010,310,51R 100% 1,010,310,518
Toial direct and
overlapping debt $1,025,458,384 100% $1.025,458,384

(1) The fiscal year of the Orleans Pansh School board and Orleans |.evee District ends on June 30th:

overlapping debt is based on June 30, 1998 financial information.
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SEWERADGE ANIDDWATEFR BOARDCHE REW DR ELANS
SCHEDLF OF FLTTURE DERT PAYMENTS
[evernber 31, 199K
{Lnapdned

_ Watef Hevernwe Bonde _ Sewer Revenoe Hood: . Drunage Sysiem Hoods
T TNents e LR Senes Scnes & rowl| Serics
1986 1R 17 iWﬁ ) P oS o Joul

| ey

Frincipa! $1.900.000 $ 24 (00 $E55.00x) $375.000 $338 (00X} 330 (0 4 604 (00

Jnteres 174 g5 791 SHA 1.533.17% 1,228 19k 261 BR 474 00 4 &),y
NXK»

bryncie ! 2.055 000 L5000 G100} BIS(XK} a0 () 3.0 0001 5604 (xX;

F17a1 41 24| BN TH ARY . 490 | B% 1.192 495 5.058 479712 4 S EQD
P 4]

Frincipul 435 00 60,000 P0.00K) £75.000 1 0150000 335 0000 4 210000

fnwerest om0 748 HIK 1 445, 266 INFEML | &t (K5 446019 4 DENAYD
X

Frincipa! 455,00 A85%.000) 103000 915,000 1 080,000 A55 000 4 4 %) (XX»

Lnieye st 67,550 T4 MR 1.399. 750 ] R 7. 49% 113,790 439 V56 IEIIALY
203

Prascipal 0 (0 &5 000 00 000 AR LY 3 140.0K0 hFAVAS A 4 4 Hits 000

| hierest 15,000 678 68 A4 O {015,548 18,710 418,102 3. 5000)
ef (0]

Principal &EM).00 1.0 00 985 D00 AS( 00 375000

Lrere £t O™ | 35) . 295 Q7N AGE hE AT 3,307,984
XS

Frincipal &0 OO 1.24% (XK) 1.030.000 405 (00 A, %40.000

Intere s GO3 (M3 .22 1Ay Q3 OdK 37147 1110972
),

PFrincipal &0, 000 P AM000 1.O75(XX) 425 000 140000

Intere sy 562.618 1,142 670 R&% Q06 A50 9IRS 2916250
o L A,

Prncpat 725.000 1318000 1138000 430,000 3.725.000

Intere st LE T B 1.056 KRQ £) 3,904 333 840 2738471
MR

Frincins! F30.000) 1 490 G0 (Wi 2L 475000 1015000

Intesesr 504, (R QI8 42 764 A 114 650 2. 58K 7R2
LD

] 810000 1870000 1,265 (00 SO0 L0 4145000

brnere s 471,728 EOR 134 AR (N oy 472 23187197
XD

Frinipal 845000 1655 (XK 1,320 (XX] 520,000 4, %40 (X0}

Trnere st 3 Y A3 R150°20 %4 750 PEFRRD 2.179.0M5
01

Frarcipral BRA& (K 1. 745 (KX)» . 380 00 545 000} d 534 000

Iniere st 395 468 726234 S99, 600 249 582 1,968 544
Rl I

Frincipa) L2000 1 840 000 ERAYLL SO 4,780,000

Interest 158 D43 G 12K 5301 124 TRA 1,745, 75
AR

Frincipal 06 S OO0 1O () P50, 00N 864,000 5.010.000

Intere 3! HSAYD 532 003 451 M- 198 280 L.50R 1N
Mg

Frincipal RRLLL 2080000 [ AES. 00X} 625000 £.275%.000

Jntere st 269,191 4 My KR4 1BK. 6% | 70.01K 1.254 RS0
M5

Frveacapal 1 {1 (NX) A ) 6455000 655.000 5,540,000

Pawere st 23] SH 313,000 10RO 14001k A9
M

Frincipal 1.1 HD.O0K) 2 (XK 1,725 ()X} &85 000 SE20.00

Iniere s | 70, HA) 102 78 PIR T 1O 250 700,521
M3

Frncipal 1165000 2 435000 1 B2 (0N TH) (KD 6.1 30,000

Interesl 1 16,864 65475 141,000 74.000) 397,340
Hilk

Frincipal 1.220 (XK L9100 40000 3 R0 000

Inlerear 59, V80 47,75 A8 .((x) H4%,530
Vimad

Fringipal L5000 1600 I} 2922000 25,000 (0 S1730.000 HOLEXC QY 90,725 000

Interest _RIT28)  wgY RN _IRSRS 1407581) L RIBad ARRD AR 45432622

Tonal $5 17228 325 K0 NN L4 7R 646 $MA 075517 15955 424 SIS K2 AR $139 |57 /O
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

Ten Largest Taxpayers

December 31, 1997 *

Name of Taxpayer

BellSouth Telecommunications
Entergy Service

Hibernia National Bank

First NBC

Whitney National Bank

AT&T Communications
Metropolitan Life Insurance

Tenetsub (Mercy & Baptist Hospitals)
Intemational Kaver Center

CSE&M Associates

Source: City of New Oileans

(Unaudited)
Percentage
1997 of Total
Type of Assessed assessed
Busingss value yalug
Telephone utilities $69,471 3.5%
Electric and gas 68,893 3.5
Financial institution 21,588 .1
Financial institution 21,258 1.1
Financial institution 19,513 1.0
Telecommunications 18,832 1.0
insurance 13,234 0.7
Medical complex 12,558 0.6
Real estate 11,673 0.6
Hotel 11,381 0.6
*526&401‘* t 3L'?‘}fnm

( * )} The latest date available for the Ten Largest Taxpayers from the City of New Orleans

annual report for the year ended December 31, 1997
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For major jobs, the Board may contract with construction firms for all or part of the work.
Standard bid procedures are followed for scheduled projects, but on some 0ccasions
crmergency bids are authorized for crucial, unexpected repairs.

The S&WEB must purchase and maintain much spocial equipment, ke the Vac-con truck which
clears clogged sewerage and drainage line. Crews went into action in September to clean catch

basins and drainage lines when Hurricane Georges threatened the City.
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

1998 ACTUAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

WATER DEPARTMENT
110 Normal Extension & Replacement 0923,438.73
118 Modernization of Steam Systern 548.963.17
135 Improvement of Chemical System 4,714.21
155 Mechamical Renovations of Conventional Basins 4,167,947 83
156 Advanced Carrollton Water Treatment 09,237.24
187 Advenced Algiers Water Treatment 273,420.95
TOTAL WATERWORKS 6,017,722.13
WATER DISTRIBUTION
200 Enginecr & Inspection of Development Installation 2,259.00
214 Normal Extensions & Replacements 661,299 84
221 Feeder Main Extension, General 117.80
239 Mains in Street Department Contracts 2,159,335.58
240 Earhart Transmission Main 1,724 778 .58
TOTAL WATER DISTRIBUTION 4,547.790.80
600 Water Share of Power Projects 239,033 .68
ROO Water Share of General Budget ltemns 5,587,036.43
TOTAL WATER DEPARTMENT $ 16,391,583.04

NOTE: These figures do not include proration of interest expense.
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

1998 ACTUAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

C.B.#

313
317
326
339
348
360
364
360

381

GO
FALR
KOO

SEWERAGE DEPARTMENT

SEWERAQE SYSTEM

Force Main East Gentilly

Normal Extensions & Replacement of Gravity Mains
t.xtensions & Replacement to Scwer Pumping Stations
Main 1n Streets Dept. Contracts

Normal Extensions & Keplacements

Repatrs and/or Replacement of Sewer Lines

Force Mains Replacements

irish Bavou - L.ake Catherine

TOTAL SEWERAGE SYSTEM

SEWAGE TREATMEN]

Modification & Expansion of WBSTP to MGD
TOTAL SEWAGLE TREATMENT

Sewerage Share of Power Prajects

Drainage Emergency Reserve

Sewerage Share of General Budpet ltems

TOTAL SEWERAGE DEPARTMENT

NOTE: These figures do not include proration of interest expense.

V.2

448,304.36
6,973,072.82
173,903.66
2,232,904.94
1,872,362.76
625,150.23
639.44
2,659.41

12,328,997.62

$ 4,980.,776.33
_ h) 4‘980‘??6'33_

201.245.36

4. 45672

5.045,124.17

$ 22.560.600.20




SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORILEANS

1998 ACTUAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

C.B# CANALS
418 Normal Extension & Replacements 24,145.51
439 Algiers Canal 383,101.30
453 Improvements to Metairie Relief Canal 1,378,842.30
463 Stormwater Management Plan 75,624.67
466 Louisiana Ave. Pipeline 82,673.70
471 C.O.E. Drainage Study 1,919,769.39
477 Viavant - [hwyer to Gentilly Road 147,404.87
486 Napoleon Canal Improvements 256,827.01
497 Florida Ave. Canal - Mazant to People 368,218.33
TOTAIL DRAINAGE CANAL 5,236,607.08
PUMPING STATIONS
511 Normal Extenston & Rep./Stations 568,652.36
535 Drainage Pumping Station #6 Improvements 27,066.15
550 Additions to Dratnage Pumping Station #1] 422,715.12
554 Expansion of Dwyer DPS 280,184.44
5587 Floodgate DPS #16 Discharge Tunnel 6,024.00
TOTAL DRAINAGE PUMPING STATION 1,334,642.07
600 Drainage Share of Power Projects 433,766.54
703 Drainage Emergency Rescrve 11,344.04
800 Drainage Share of General Budget Hems 2,312,130.27

TOTAL DRAINAGE DEPARTMENT

NOTE: These figures do not include proration of interest expense.

V-3
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POWER PURCHASED AND PRODUCEHED
NATURAL GAS AND FUEL OI1L CONSUMED-1998

KW-HRS COST
ELECTRIC POWER PURCHASED 67,067,145 $4,765,576

ELECTRIC AND STEAM POWER $7,715,200 $8,731,839
GENERATED BY THE S. & W. B.*»

TOTAL 124,782,345 $13,497.415

NOTE : *NATURAL GAS CONSUMED IN OPERATION WAS 1,487,450 MCF AT A COST OF
$6,925,345.55 FUEL OIL CONSUMED WAS 27,043 GAL AT A COST OF §22,987.
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SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

WATER PUMPED AND CONSUMEID - 1998

i/
v

Number of

Meters

37
17
13
96

228
57
214

669

184

Free metered process water to
various City departments and
charitable instutulions:

Display Fountains

Iire Department
Swimming Pools
l.ibraries

Municipal

Parks and Playgrounds
Police Department
Schools

B

Free metered process water

Sewerape and Water Board

Allowance for leaks 1n piping fixtures, eic.

Unmetered free use, such as: extinguishment
of fires, cleaning strects, flushing sewers,
drains, and gutters, cleaning markets and
other public butldings, under registratton

of meters, leaks in distribution system, elc.

Sold

Total Water Pumped

1V-§

Galions

5,132,900
11,495,300
29,513,000

4,272,300

109,723,800
381,837,200
348,774,400
136,502,300

1,027,251,200

868,668,900

308,292,000

26,343,175,900

23,727,252,000

L I T T,

52,274 .64(,000)

. ———

1.97%

1 .66%

b

0.59%

50.39%

- 45.39%

v - -

10¢).00%

L T e




SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD
OF NEW ORLEANS

GALLONS METERED - PAY WATER CONSUMPTION 1988

Monthly
. Month _Consumption
January 1,912.804.600
February 1,702,056,000
March 1.893,336,800
April 1,728.865,500
May 2,110,311.800
June 2,166,637,000
July 2,377,317,400
August 1,663,160,400
September 2,190,224,600
October 1,890,809,500
November 2,000,804,900
December _2,090,823,400

IV-9




SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW ORLEANS

MONTHLY WATER CHARGES COLLECTED - 1994

Water
Waler Scrvige Delinguent From Fire
Months (‘harEﬂ & Fees F{T."L Hydrants Tyl
January 4,223.051.22 TO589.53 6R8.16 4,201 9289
February 3,934 42074 83.589.59 344.08 4,018,354 41
March 4,939 860.60 K1.689.03 4,171 .97 5.025,730.60
April 3.705.316.63 62.043.99 {200} 3,772.060.62
May 4.229.199 3] HO.226.04 341,08 4.309,769.43
June 4 . 986,2231.63 71.515.04 161,27 5.058,899 94
July 4,602,295 87 B1,000.42 | .849.43 4,685 14617
Augusl 4.658,067.11] 75,855 08 2.6006.62 4,736, 585 .8
Scplember 4,282.513.39 12.314.62 1.161.27 4,355 989 2K
October 5. 148981 9] 135.157.66 1,505,315 3.2K5,644.92
November 3,793 . 54K .87 99.080.32 | 505.35 3,894 134.54
December 4.550.103.3% 60,323.93 2.660.62 F.619 093,93
$53.054.191.66 $984 985 .65 £18.064.20 $54.057.241.51
SEWERAGE AND WATER BOARD OF NEW OR1.EANS
MONTHLY SEWERAGE CHARGES COLLECTED - 1998
Sewrrape Service Dehinguent
‘Months Charges ] N F{Tri Total
January 3.010,529 65 47,199 86 3,057,729 .21
February 2 R24.40131 86 S85.877.27 2RE0.281.13
Muarch 3.497.231.1v 34,612 82 3.551,843.71
Apnl 2.073.164.01 45,236.58 2718 400.59
May 29068 156.55 23,619 83 3.0021.776.3K
Junc 34746700 47822 .57 3,522 492 78
July 3.061.417.93 54.151.05 3.118,508 9K
Arrgus 3,237,7(:.007 S50.710.54 3,286,414 .61
Scptember 3.001,221.9) 48.345.02 3.049 566,93
(X tober 3.648.503 K4 D0.280.54 3738 744 3%
November 2,700,245 40 GO 197 37 277844277

I }'vember

319465513 3.239,006.59

37962 31K.00
I T - i el i

HLAR AU 3
S e T MM i i i M

37130391375
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CARROLLTON BACTERIAL CHARACTERISTICS
Total Colitorm Anatysis
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. River ' Effluent of Coagulating Plant Tap Distribution
1998 (. (1998) | and Setting Reservoirs | (1998) | _ System

Maximum (Colonies / 100 ml) | 4,350 730 | B

Minimum (Colonies / 100 ml) | 180 ] <10 T o] 0

el . [ P, +... R . --..._._.._._-"—-\...._..,_.._-.1 e e pE ey 4 TR A —_ P,

\verage (Colonies / 100 ml) 915 4 4 0y O

Number of Samples 360 e 362 2.414

{Number of Samples Négg}me TR T 00 TTTTR62 2 408

e — — L 1t fr T T VISR e s s s =

e i ——

LREERIT et rmm— e - A |

INumber of Samples Positive 360 52 ) 0 6]
L H P 3 e b sl it £ AP e b Ll - Yt T T ey~ rerkd ) TPV R S LAY =i il .:_:'"' el eyl et 0 S e LU (Rl P i IR O = el H [ patmro e Do T o STy SRR R sy T LG S

* None of these six total coliform positive samples were fecal coliform positive, and none resulted n any
violation of the Total Colform Rule,
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FIVE YEAR ANALYSIS DATA (1943 .

TABLE Vi

DRINKING WATER PURIFICATION SYSTEM

PARAMETER

MISSISSIPPI RIVER ¢

(Betore Purification)

1998) FOR NEW ORLEANS

FINISHED WATER

_{AfHter F‘unﬁcatmn}

TOTAL ALKALINITY (PPM AS CaC03)

f——————— e

TOTAL HARDNESS (PPM AS CaC03)

pH

- ——

[ —

PRON (PPB) |

[ZINC (PPB)

- o ma Aa -

ICALCIUM HARDNESS (PPM AS CaCO3)

= oy ey

—_————— . fm——n

CHLORIDE (PPM}
FLUORIDE (PPM)
TOTAL DISSOLVED SOLIDS (PPM)
TOTAL SUSPENDED SOLIDS (PPM)

[, ————

R

T — | T

MMONIA (PPM AS N)

LEAD (PPB)
MERCURY (PPB)
‘ELENJUM (PPB)
[SILVER (PPB)

TEMPERATURE (DEG F :
ALUMINUM (PPB;
ARSENIC (PPB)
BARIUM (PPB)
CADMIUM (PPB)
ICHROMIUM (PPB)
COPPER (PPB)

POTASSIUM (PP
SODIUM (PPM)

TOTAL TR:HALOM’E’*THANLS(WBJ

Y -,y

ORTHO PHOSPHATE (PPM AS PO4)
TOTAL PHDSF’HATE iPPM AS POdl____
SULFATE (PPM AS S04)
SILICA (PPMASSO02)
NITRATE (PPMASN)
INITRITE (PPM AS N)
COLOR (Scale Umts)

WONCARBONATE HARDNESS (PPM AS CaCO3)

MAGNE SIUM HARDNESS (PPM AS CaC03)
NEPHELOMETRIC TURBIDITY (NT.U)

—_——— . rwrwr .

pACKS_ON_TURBI[)IT‘f JTU)

OTAL CHLORINE RESIDUAL (PPM AS CL2)

’IOTAL ORGANIC CARBON (PPM)
1 2-DICHLOROE THANE (PPB)

'imu:;rmr ORM (PPB)
[CAHE ON TETRACHLORIDE (PPB)

[BROMODICHLOROME THANE (PPBy

TETRACHLOROE THFNE (PPB)
81X (lienzene, Toluene & ):yleneaj (F’PB)
TOTAL COLIFORMS {comnlesﬂﬂo mly

HETE f*.OTROPHIC FLATE COUNT (col. r’1DO m!;

FECAL COLIFORMS (mlmmesf’lﬂ[} i}

5 RYELIUM (PPR)
IMARGANE SE (FPB)
[NICvEL (PPB)
Lﬂthfﬁ. JNY [F‘ "£3)
[THALLIUM (FPB)

WEW o p Ee o Sttt Y ey L o W

CUMax ] MIN T AVG T MAX. T TMIN AVG
o 186) 70| o 112p 140 . AB[ 86
207, 86 el R a2l 143
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87 e 38
w0l ool 049
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E-ﬁj* o2 497. 712, 274 809
T Tes ol 51 Y ¥ Y
_3el 08, 24l 32 o7l 20
) 043] 00 0171 o8y ool 00
______ o 25! 101 B2 27 S IR -
e 871 ?00 3801 541! 232] 387
______ 90 .32 B4, 88 a6 14
203, ot s3] _83 B Y
51 00| HJ 48] 00l o4
o 281, Al b6l 139 20] 39
) 52 oo o5 537 o0l 03
| {80l 0.0! 43 188 00] B2
] 359 00 250 740 T o0y T 20
_ .30 o0 0 a0l T oo] 02
16 ool ool 05 0.0] 00
....... 33 0o 05 T as 0.0] 05
DJ ool a0 o7 T ool 00
. 244 ol 1 430 Tl g
* 134: 15 33( .88 A2 a3
;. 511 85 2va4l 44 .80 203
; 24 00 00: _ 43 40| 151
,.ﬁ.sﬂ R 5i azf " TTasl TR T oe
| .89, oo 0.0) 26, 00 oD
11 0ol 0.0} 09 00] 0.0
o 41 _ 0.0 0 0] 197 o0l 0.0
. ...13000]  <100] 1398/ 110 0 0
S se000f 1000 4754y 7000 ol 5
| 28700 *:10[ 20af ol ol 0
; 0.7 0.0 o, A 0 0
140/ ool 24 20 0| 3
80 0.0] 0.3, 6 To, 0
RIS, &) NS L 1 D 0

[V-18



TABLE VI
CARROLLTON OPERATION

T e At

B T L S A e T S T CHEM‘C AL COST P[’ R 1
CHEMICAL CHEMICAL COST | MILLION GALLONS
LIME e §$68680896 |  $14.83
IFERRIC COAGULANT $307,486.20 1 $6.64
ICHLORINE $?53 o19. 00 | 3 $5.48 |
ISODIUM POLYPHOSPHATE ) $102,993.38 $2.22
POLYELECTROLYTE 1  $188,333.17 e $4.07
FLUORIDE (100%) doe 98269265 - $1.79
AMMONIA e ~ $64,524.70 %139
CARBON $3.010.82 $0.07
.. JOTALCHEMICALS |  $1.689 36888 _ _.$36.49 |
Purification Plant Operating Cost: $4.612,523.00
Total Water TREATED 1998: 46,302 820,000 Gallons

TOTAL COST
PER MILLION GALLONS

I [TOTAL WATER TREATED| N COSTPER
. YEAR MILLION GALLONS  |OPERATING COST{MILLION GALLONS
. 1998] 4630282 | $4612523.00 ] $99.62 |
1997 ..46987.48|  $4960,716.00 | . $105.58 |
1996y 47.073.24 $4 634.048.80 | $98. EL('
1996 ~ 44,578.29 $4,389,820.00 $98.47
L. .1994] 4150375 ]  $4,15444500 | " ""§100.10 |

NOTLE: Operating costs since 1996 include expenditures: Pension FICA.
FICA-MED; which were charged to payrofl related groups in previous years.
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TABLE X
ALGIERS OPERATION

._,_.._.--\_-_.

[EFIL PRI, ._._-|I---—|--| LD u-l-

[T e " TCHEMICAL COST PER
| CHEMICAL | CHEMICAL COST | MILLION GALLONS
LIME 1. 812436967 |  $20.83
FERRIC COAGULANT | $63,816.24 $10.69
CHLORINE o $50,784.86 | ~ $8.50 .
SODIUM POLYPHOSPHATE | $15,561.57 $2 .61
POLYELECTROLYTE = . ..$46,84981 | $7.85
FLUORIDE (100%) | $8,929.06 %150
AMMONIA L T 3885853 | 5148
CARBON $952.41 | ~$0.16 |
"~ TOTAL CHEMICALS | 832012215 ] ~—  $5361 |
Purification Plant Operating Cost: $1,461,416.00
Total Water TREATED 1998. 5.971.820.000 Gallons
TOTAL COST

PER MILLION GALLONS
CTTTTTTTTIHOTAL WATER TREATED] TTTCOSTPER ]
_YEAR  MILLION GALLONS  |OPERATING COST!MILLION GALLONS
L 199__8_.1 _...597182| 5146141600  $244.72
T 1go7] 440211 | $1.340.745.00 | $304.57
}____ 1996l 418724 |  $1094.97156 | $261.50
. 1999] 421743  $1088219.00| = $258 03
| 1994 418788  $117899300|  $28153 |

NOTE: Operating costs since 1996 include expenditures: Pension, FICA,
FICA-Med, which were changed to payroll related groups in previous years.
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TABLE X

SLUDGE REMOVED FROM THE "G" BASINS PRIMARY TREATMENT UNITS

DORR MONORAKE CONVENTIONAL SYSTEM

1998

[TolalM.G Water Treated "1 2884588 ]
Total Tons Dry Sludge Deposited in Basins Including Suspended

and Dissolved Solids Removed and Reacting Chemicals 19,281 |
Total M.G. Wet Sludge Withdrawn From Basins 479205
Average Percent Solids in Wet Sludge . 0.98
Total M.G. Water Used In Wlthdraw@gﬁgyl_udge ! 79012
Percent of Total Water Treated Used in thhdrawmg Wet Sludge | 2.74 |

TABLE X-A

SLUDGE REMOVED FROM THE "L" BASINS PRIMARY TREATMENT UNITS

DORR MONORAKE CONVENTIONAL SYSTEM
1998

— —+—n e YRR . -

-—a
—_—

n. —— s -.-_-_.,_,_-_|_._.."_--u-|—-—- LR R

ffotal MG Watér"Treated

[P - 1
I s ma et e T TN T TN e e 1

Total Tons Dry Siudge Deposited in Basins including Suspended
and Dissolved Solids Removed and Reacting Chemicals

e A LR e~ = Ty rar vy rre s e s Bl Bk - B e s ey g

[IL T I S AF R S,

i

Average Percent Solds In ‘Wet Siudgﬁ

-l LN . A -

s——r—r-rroe— o Py T, —

- ERTLI TR —ar

Total M.G. Water Used In W:thdrawmg __S!_udge

p— . — —— AN AR e - — g — . FEE Heme e ——

TR L e b e s et e
— e = caad

ISP ——— T——Tr—rri

e I Tmen
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f_’;e_;cent ofmTotal Water Treated Used in Withd rawrng Wet Sludge 2.
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TABLE X
1998 ANALYSIS DATA FOR NEW ORLEANS DRINKING WATER PURIFICATION SYSTEM

m ) Sl 1< = b I T B et P M T BT T IR TR T T rperL e W m-»w« mmirgmg—é
PARAMETER {Befq:e Punflcahom 1 (After Punflcatrong __
[TMAX T MIN ] TAVG T MAX MIN T AVG

TOTAL ALKAUNITY (PPMIAS CaCO3) 186/ 80, ii6y __ 11a 62 89
TOTAL HARDNESS (PPM AS CaCO3) TTTTTO00

169;  113] 140

NONCARBONATE HARDNESS (PPMAS CaCoO3)_ |~ "~ "'88; 16 35"”_'__'.'_':_;':_‘.,_ 0] 35| 50
CALCIUM HARDNESS (PPM AS CaCO3) | 4830 7760 10s] 127 Teal 04

JE—Y

MAGNESIUM HARDNESS (PPM AS CaCO03) 82| " 11| agl """"5] 16 " 36
NEPHELOMETRIC TURBIDITY (NT U)) i ev3l 7l BBy 0400? 015

- —r

-t = —— = = R ]

JACKSON TURBIDITY (JT.U) - L.355] 25 129 S
H o B sel  Trarl T w03l |

S

CHTBRIBE (F’"Fil‘;r'li e e e e e s e - 50! ol AT 6? I 50 _ ot m_33_1

T —a—— —— T —TETEETAr I EE R de, BR R == smmms o —

FLUORIDE (PPM) 1 D48] _ D14]  D.24] 13} 071) 100

-- B e T T L S— TR P — { T — T — et o e,

TOTAL DISSOLVED SOLIDS (PPM) [~ 295] @5/ 207} 268] 96| 197

—_—

TOTAL SUSPENDED SOLIDS (PPM) T 258 ool 428y o] ol %

- — ey s W WEIF—ETI AF

a— L L T [REE S ——— ]

FREE CHLORINE RESIDUAL (PPMAS CL2) ol el of  o7s] 04 015)
TOTAL CHLORINE RESIDUAL (FPMAS CL2) 1 o} KON SN 7J S 1) ST

A —— e T p——

T~ 7w ras s

ORTHO PHOSPHATE (PP AS F’Od) o f 031" 023 028 029] "038] " "023)

— e e e r O R M e T I B e o

TOTAL PHOSPHATE (PPMASFPO4) Gﬁsj . 035] 045]  062]  037] 051

f———— e — .

SULFATE (PPMASSO4) 1 " 4834|  322. 4168B] 472] 271] 4156]
SILICA (PPM AS $i02) T TeRl 26l 5391 5-2_ 4 3. 482

LT T " ———. R PR 18

e —

NITRATE (PPM AS N}
NITRITE (PPMAS N)

b
COLOR (Scale Units) ] 4 L -
CONDUCTIVlmummsw i5304 - 230] 356 479 247{ 344
|

TEMPER&TUREQDEG F)o

RSENIC (PPB) 54 08] i78f a8 01 085

BAR | UM LF'}F)B_J A e e H ___F"_.. u_._____.___,j_,.,m...._.ﬁw.._ PR [ —— ““édfj.i.u - .-., .‘36 ) I_EQ Bﬂ i _"_.,6_5._,-:.--_“._: ?._3_, - 3683

CADMIUM (PPB] _'__'__'__'_'__f e O <Y X X _f' o7 00[ 002

LA b T K L TR S ——.

—_———— — LR el e TN

COPPER(PPB) ~~ T 1?% a2l T 198] T 01] 1138
IRON (PPB) o asl 0l 24,5817 100 0] 14,86

LEAD (PPB) _" FE S S L..od2f 28] O] 028
0

o 0y 0d2p 28]
MERCURY (PPB) *DU 1_Ui Y R - I ) X
1:
U{»
0

SELENIUM (PPB)
,‘%ILVE R (PPB) e B O D
[F’OTASSIUM (PPM) . Tisal gt 366y ]
SODLIUM (PPM; | T sa T asl 28 '"28.5 9
TOTALGRGANIC CARBON (PPN~~~ |~ ss| 300l a5 304 i
it ZDICHLORGETHANE (0F8) . .89l o0l ooof T U2all

—

™
N
PN
LM

i
1
i

-
o
O
o
o

CHLOROFORM (PPB) T 0ol ebl T ool 303 T e8] 1373
CARBON TETRACHLORIDE (PPB) o og""“' 00, ool ool ool ool

'BROMODICHL OROME THANE (PPB)

LI

"5:}

C‘J

'E:*r

O

o

-

e

&s)
000
O:NIC

(a)

!
|
|
i
|
t

}
PE 1 hAC‘ HLORCJETHE NE {F‘F‘B} ‘ | 0 3 0 D DD o UU
HTX (Ben?ene 1nluene & Xyleneg_l_(F}pB) 1 : 81 0 U S o i
g O"IA[ COL!FORM%{GGImmesHDD mhy J 43500 180 9?0 st R 5
HE- TE ROT ROF’HFC PLATE COUHT (f:DI HOO rn]) ) 11J[)0' """ 15_ggl 4300 12*9* bf ey
SRR
Ol
6

| &<
-
A=

IFECAL COLIFORMS (colomes/100 miy 4»' Cssol o 1481 b 0 -
BERYLLIUM (PPB) D i T ] RECEEPI EERRE
MANGANESE (PPEB) T T Tagl an 1zl el 0 7
NIGKEL (PR S e e S R E2) S T SRR SRR
F‘NTMO Y (PPBY T o o { S04 01T Dest 04 0] D1
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BT B -y L ik B R A TokE LM o K, AT T T AL g W 0l P T e i M gt

1V-22



TABLE Xl|
EXTRACTS FROM TABLES IV-C AND V
20 Year Period, 1978 to 1998 Inclusive
Maximum, Minimum, and Average Amount of
Water Treated Per Day
(M.G. per 24 Hours)

" CARROLLTON ~ — " |~ ALGIERS
CYEAR | MAX. | MIN. | AVG. | MAX. | MIN.
1978 144.90] 108.10] 126.30] "12.08]  8.00]
1978 | 165.70] 112.60] 132.40{ 1363|  8.00
I 1980 | 166.80] 118.30] 137. 10,} |
1981 164.50] 121.70( 140.50] 13.00 8.13
& 1982 | 216.40] 118.30] 133.80] 15.68]  9.25

|_

P} il n

1983 | 231.70] 107.60] 128.30] 15.00]  8.50
1984 166.71] 113.08] 130.37] 1542| 9.50

1985 | 210.04] 99.75] 124.08] 14.96 8.54
1986 1?5.77* 89.12] 121.50 13.71 8.04
1987 | 137.63] 9508 11642} 1346] 745
| 1988 | 14638 94.71] 118.38] 13.71|  8.34
1989 24000/ 93.83] 11954 18.75 7.00
1990 162.50] 100.46] 119.61] 14.78] 8.00
1991 | 133.29] 9892 11479f 1250  8.00
1992 | 139.00] 97.00] 11522] 1388] 800
1993 140.38] 103.25] 117.41] 1542 7.62
{1994 128.88] 103.88] 11371] 17.00]  8.00]
1995 | 142.83] 104.67| 121.40) 1814] _ 9.00,
| 1996 198.42| 91.59] 128.97! 1827|  9.00
1997 | 156.53] 112.70] 12873 18.83]  9.58
1998 | 15296] 9848| 126.86] 22.96] 1200
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TABLE Xili
Monthly Temperature (Degrees Farenheit) of the
Mississippi River Water at the Carroliton Plant

]" 1986 | 1980 ’TQ'Q*J:[‘"_T%?MJTQ@T 1994 1 1996 | 1987 1 1998
40

189
39 37| 35! 40 45 .46 64

45 40 40l 39] 371 3857 Taol T a5 T asl T T 6a

43 46 41 41 38| 36| 38! 481 50 50

o as| s ar] a7] 38| 42| 43| " s2l T h7] T 6p
o ._.58] 55y 56} 52| 48] 53] 55 T2 I Y
65 85]  B5] 83 80| ®2 62| 68 83] 70}
I I 72 I 1<) I 3 N £ 1 N 20 I 7 7 I 5 - )
a8l w9l 7of 78l 76| 77| 82| 83| 83| 85
81 80 80| 77] 76| 77| 85| 83 87/ 85
B0} BOJ 78} 74} 75y 76] 84]  82{ B3] 83}
66 69| 67 64 62| 66| 73 72 77177 261

_ ___5,8_._._,_ 871 831 54| 51 57] ﬂ.s_@ﬂ. __“_"'_'_"""_. "@.2‘. 6?"““ 65

50 45 41| 46] 50 59| sy,

X N R ) R ) B R

N =TT I rim = oL

P L e e e T — ..
pebretel gl e e P rH = Pt 2040 By et el il _-_-_J

Ten-Year Period

mL e ——— e P i1 O T L LEE T

Maximum 90
Minimum 32
Average 62
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TABLE XIV

Monthly Temperature (Degrees Farenheit) of the
Tap Water at the Carroliton Plant

e LR LN FRFTATY - Iy ir g ErrET ]
- * s .-

r—mma s

January | 51 65] 67| 64 B4

iFebruarX ] o9 64 64] 61 661
oo 24 I Y S 7 1 M £
IMB_Y__& . | 761 o ?5 78_ ] 75 79
Ju ne 79_ L 76 ...L_Z_Z__,_ ) ?:9 * *‘éé— |
.JUIY _ 781 78 . -_89__ 82 | 83

August 81 81 81| 86 84

ISeptember | 80| 81l 81| 83 81
October [ 77 oy w7l 78y 80
November 73 70 72 72| 72

December 66| 66 66 65 67

aximum — 90] = 88 Y] 92 B9)
Maximum | 90) 89y 92l 0 BY
Minimum | 44 44| 54 53 58],
Average. o o 731 74 74 75

e s LT T

“ Maximum 92
Minimum 44
Average 73

m.Em ' ] ..
TRk e s e —aaa L ey mms o SRR e s e A e ey T e L =t
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DEPARTHENRT OF CONSTRUCTION,

— — — — — — e— — — W T T e

ANNUAL REPORT - 1998

WATER TABULATION NO. 1

WATER MAINS LAID DURING

QUANTITIES MEASURED IN FEET

AOMINISTRATION,

E THSPECTIONS

19597

o= === = e e TS e e i e e i = T e g i Ay Sriey g
. ITEMS CONTRACTS _OTHERS TOTAL _FT. _TOTAL Hyﬁ;#"
2v P.V.C. 0 500 500
4" p.v.C. 0 0 D 1 |
6" pP.v.C. 4,265 0 4,265 J
| — - '
g p.v.C. 27,512 6,509 , 34,021
8" D.T. 104" 40" | 114" 1 9
10 P.V.C. 0 0 0
10" IRON 0 0 0
|-_----_ ——
12 P.V.C. 600" 300 SO0 ]
12" ID.1. 38" 0 3B’ |
| s —- e — -
18 pP.v.C, 0 0 0
20" pP.VvV.C. 0 0 0
21" D.1. 0 4 4,
c L H . 39 16 5
VALVES BB 15 103
M. H.'S J 53 8 61
N TOTAI FT. 1 32,519 7,388 | Ldﬁ 049{ 0.07 MILES
Total feet removed or abandoned - 32,700
VAIVES
INSTALLED REMOVED REMATIN
i B 89 L - 0 ) o o 1 Ej_, 722 I
HYDRANTS
J N‘STAI Lh[l HEMOVEH F REMAIN
. 1 I e _ 400 |
FEET
L gy gy gt gl L = { o = T b 7 B e —— ~ LT B T S oy e e ey e g eyt e g [ —
1 N H'] hi 1 1' i) ABAN [)ONI"H') 1 N SY STEM TOTAL: MILES
- ‘39;_9?_9 ______ o o 33 '?0{} ,“Ewlg_ 222 . ? B.54
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DEPARTHENT OF CORSTHUITION.

ANHUAL REFORT -

1998

ATMIRISTRATION.

WATER TABULATION HO., 1

WATER, MAINS, VALVES,

& IKRSFECTIONS

ARDY HYDRMAMTS IHSTALLED BY EACH AGENCY, ANIY QUANTITIES

REMOVED OR ABAKDONED IN THE FRESENT EXISTING WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM AT THE EHD QN 195%7

1V-29

— - - = T H A =T i = ¢ uHows o ke = o T e T e A ——— -
WATER MAINS VALVES HYDRANTS
AGENTY OF TOTAL REMOVED OR LINEAR 1HST.
OO - LIKEAR ARMHDONKED FEET
STREUCTION FEET REHMAIHING
INSTALLED IN BYSTEM
Alglers 49.510.0 10.,.427.0 48,0830 . 0O 72 12
Water I ]
Works 1
L e el s L J
Ordinary 4%, ¥4 . 0 32,700 «472,170).4 ap 71 15.,6%) LY )9 400
.LCnntrlct- I
S5LWB Bi4,618.0 =1-7% .3-X T .| T2Y,346.8 d,070 14) 1.937 1.95%B 247 1,121}
Forcas
By L-M-F 178, 0883.8 1.6%7.1) 1120.02%.0 Z.141 12A 4.01) ic,l1l0 &%) 4.617
ContracLm
By P-W-A EE,.5T74 .6 1,70% .7 &Ed.917 .1 kY . | 16 .Y 3 4 4 d
Contracte
r i * 1 ' ﬂ
d C-W-A- & I3 0.2 9,584 .2 32.35%4. % a0 & 14 Lk Y RE
E-R-Ah-
il Lontracte
» - . -
By W-F-A 4%6 AdlR .9 dé9,19% .7 420 1% 401 400 45 44
Contlrmcta
By F-W-A L2.649 & 2, 64% . ¢ 13 33 19 1§ {
Contrmcte
' . . |
By various }.15%8.0 2.71%).0 I 3.158.0 [
Wal
Agenclies
Undei 2.75%). 0 (L ¢!
HAH ]
| ! -
Undet 1,376, 4 1,176 .4
F-P-H-A [ 1
1_ J— [P P pa— 1- F 3
By {1 jeang J&9,3B1.0 4.1713.2 147,667 .8 314 i 357 nal 1B BED
Leven Rd.
i r———— e --.L — ﬁ Uranp ey L ALY L I- I ——
By OLhars 1940,1731.5% 44 . 0%% .0 12%1 . 272.5% Y, 237 } 2% Y. a08 4,427 25 i, 402 ’
- i —1 * — ——_—y o S . - [ - -
By Locks 8,508 .3 %.508 _2 ] 121 121
Board
p —— I st A - — ———— e sy i Ll - ] bbbk rw b =1 o P P - _i
Tctrtal 9. 208131 .1 404, 204.5 BBl1&,15) .6 1,716 l 753 15,81) 18,459) l, 020 17,5%%)
Lirnaesr Fr.
—— k- - s I — i . 48 P ey o P L N A ) AR o] B T __._,,I
Totel 1,832.7 6,17 1.7)5% . &
Hiles I
= r o Sy = Sy e e e =t 2 o e et R e R R T T e TR S T SR A AN




DEPARTHMERT OF CONSTRUCTION, ADMINISTRATION, & 1RSPECTIONS
ANNUAL Rrepor? - 1998
WaTER TABULATION No. 3

1LENGTH ©OF WATER MAINS OF EACH SIZE AND MATERIAL, NWUIMBER OF VALVES OF EACH S12%,
BOoTH GATE AND CHECK, ORIGINALLY INSTALLED, THE QUANTITIES REMOVED OR
ABANOONED, AND THE QUANTITIES REMAINING 1IN THE DISTRIBUTION
SYSTEM AT THE END OF 1997

S —— ms v ey % e mmnmes e i I ST T T e o - £ ! moTerp ey =T )
WA TER MAINS l VAL?ES I
s e S i i SR VY s - . et P s
i Lin. FT Law. Fr. Liw., FT. Gars
HaTer]al » Sree INssALLED RoMovEs Foa ] W] W Eree JWET - R, Rensam e,
Concrete Flpe 54 2,535, 7.5%35.1 4B° 0 0 0
Steel FPlpa | 50° sl ¢824 .8 BB, 18L& {2 | 0 ¢
Sterl Plpa i8- Je, 0451 36,045 .1 g ’ )| D il
Concrate Plpe 4B” 4,982.5% 4.5982. 9 30" 1 D 6&
Cast lron Plps [ 42’ 13,2%9.) ! 11,3255 .) 24 D 1 0 )
Cant Yron Plpe 'K ! 15,.880.1 §,71D $ 11.170.10 30" 0 0 0
| concrete Pipe £z 5,361.9 $.361.9 16+ 0 0 0 |
Campt lyon FPlpe 41" 4,343 . & l ‘ 4,349 % 14 O 1 g
{Cast Iron Pipe 16° £,640.1 &0 4.5%21). 30 12 12 0 1916
Steel Pipe 16° i 16,7612 16,761 .2 10 0 0 0
Concrete Flpe ME" 37.3794.7 i I 31, 3%4.7 - 71 15 2519 |
Frestiesms Concrete LY N £75.0 815. 0 Ej 0 47 A S
Cost lron Pipe 30 | 6¢,323.5 3,463 .4 60.640.1 d 0 24 221)
Freatrens® Concrele 30" A6, 654 .4 36,654 .4 - C D 0
©.C.F. Pipa 10° 1.919 .6 3,919.6 2% o o o ‘
[ructi)e lron Plpe 10 35.0 3s.0 r & b 0 14
Stee) Flpe 10 19, 6072.2 19.4602.2
Concrete Plpe 30 12,480 .7 140 R E
P.Vv.L Fipe A0 1,483 .1 i 1,48).)
E.C.F Plpe rE 162 .5 102.5%
oncrete Plpe rl 4,062.5% 41.062.5
Cost lron plpe 24" 13,5%7.1 3, 116.9 IO, 4B0. 2 |
F v C. Fipe r 3 I 6.0 a.0 I
Cent lron Pipe 20° 10%,7E5 Kk Y 41%9.2 104,346 . &
Asbestos Cement 20" 12,6680 12,680, 0 ;
Concrete Fipe 20 20,.220.)3 L4645 38,755 . 8
ructile Tron Fipe 20" 1.3 F ad,. 181, 4
Frestresmed Concratem 20" 212.5% 112.% ‘
K.C . FPipe 18° 970.5 ] §70.5 |
{ast lron Fipe it 121,060 .5 i.9%B5.9 YI1E,D%4 & l
Coacregte Fipe 16* 6,900 2 1,21B.6 L.E6B1 . & i
[ructiles lron Fips 16" 3,212, 3,314 % |
FoV.C. Flpe 16° &40.0 E.475.%
ABLestcs Cerneant 66, 344 2 &6,34d. 2
R C.F. ¥Fipe 15" 1,469, . 1 1.069.)
Cant lron Fipse 12° ¢e8,013.1 “E,973.) BE9)L,038 .3
Steel Pipe 12°* 1,27%2.9 | 1.474.9 | I l
Asbewtca Cement 14° YE9.0&4 ] . 1527 YT 8] .6 ]
octile lton Pipe 12° je . [ 4,658 3
P V.C Fipe 12" §00 87,961, ) [
Cost lron Pipe 10° | 11.25).2<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>